FULLY EXECUTED - CHANGE 3
Contract Number: 4400011882
Original Contract Effective Date: 08/29/2013



Contract Change Date: 11/05/2019 Valid From: 01/01/2014 To: 12/31/2019 All using Agencies of the Commonwealth, Participating Political Subdivision, Authorities, Private Colleges and Universities **Purchasing Agent** Name: Huffine James Your SAP Vendor Number with us: 373413 Phone: 717-346-3847 Fax: 717-346-3819 Supplier Name/Address: POLYGON US CORPORATION 15 SHARPNERS POND RD BLDG F NORTH ANDOVER MA 01845-5716 US Please Deliver To: To be determined at the time of the Purchase Order unless specified below. Supplier Phone Number: 800-422-6379 Supplier Fax Number: 610-837-4343 **Contract Name: Payment Terms** Records and Doc Recov Svcs (Child 2) NET 30 Solicitation No.: 6100025826 Issuance Date: 07/25/2013 Supplier Bid or Proposal No. (if applicable): 6500067469 Solicitation Submission Date: 08/08/2013 This contract is comprised of: The above referenced Solicitation, the Supplier's Bid or Proposal, and any documents attached to this Contract or incorporated by reference. Item Material/Service UOM Price Per Total Qty Desc Unit 1 Records and Document Recovery 0.000 0.00 0.00 Services **General Requirements for all Items:** Information: Supplier's Signature _____ Title

Date

Printed Name





FULLY EXECUTED - CHANGE 3
Contract Number: 4400011882

Original Contract Effective Date: 08/29/2013

Contract Change Date: 11/05/2019 Valid From: 01/01/2014 To: 12/31/2019

Supplier Name:

POLYGON US CORPORATION

ea			
		PY	

Please see the Contract Supplier Information Listed Below:

Start 1/1/2014 - 12/31/2016

Polygon US Corporation 15 Sharpners Pond Rd. North Andover, MA 01845-5716 Rob Schmidt (email)rob.schmidt@polygongroup.com (ph) 484-553-0188 (fax)302-798-4254

Contract Administrator Contact Information:

Wanda Bowers (ph) 717-346-3840 (fax)717-783-6241 wbowers@pa.gov

No further information for this Contract

Information:	

Table of Contents

PART I - GENERAL INFORMATION	
I.1 IFB-001.1 Purpose (Oct 2006)	3
I.2 IFB-005.1 Type of Contract (Oct. 2006)	
I.3 IFB-008.1C No Pre-bid Conference (Oct. 2006)	
I.4 IFB-009.1 Questions (February 2012)	
I.5 IFB-010.1 Addenda to the IFB (Oct. 2006)	
I.6 IFB-011.1B Submission of Bids – Electronic Submittal (May 2011)	
I.7 IFB-024.1 Bid Protest Procedure (Oct 2006)	
I.8 IFB-025.1 Electronic Version of this IFB (Oct 2006)	
I.9 IFB-029.1 Prices (Dec 6 2006)	
I.10 IFB-031.1 Alternates (Nov 2006)	
I.11 IFB-032.1 New Equipment (Nov 2006)	
I.12 I-IFB-033.1 Modification or Withdrawal of Bid (Nov 2006)	
I.13 I-IFB-034.1 Rejection of Bids (Nov 2006)	8
PART II - REQUIREMENTS	
II.1 II-IFB-008.1b Lobbying Certification and Disclosure – Electronic Submission. (Oct 2006)	9
II.2 II-IFB-016.1 Post-Submission Descriptive Literature (Dec 2006)	
PART III - SELECTION CRITERIA	
III.1 III-IFB-001.1a Mandatory Responsiveness Requirements (Oct 2006)	
III.2 III-IFB-006.1f Method of Award - All Bidders (April 2011)	
III.3 III-IFB-007.1 Awards (May 2011)	
III.4 III-IFB-008.1 Tie Bids (Nov 2006)	10
III.5 III-IFB-009.1 Prompt Payment Discounts (Nov 2006)	10
III.6 III-IFB-010.1 Option for Separate Competitive Bidding Procedure (Nov 2006)	
PART IV - WORK STATEMENT	
IV.1 IFB-001.1b Statement of Work (Nov 2006)	
PART V - CONTRACT TERMS and CONDITIONS	
V.1 CONTRACT-001.1b Contract Terms and Conditions (Nov 30, 2006)	
V.2 CONTRACT-002.1a Term of Contract – Contract (May 2012)	
V.3 CONTRACT-002.2a Renewal of Contract Term (Nov 30 2006)	
V.4 CONTRACT-002.3 Extension of Contract Term (Nov 30 2006)	
V.5 CONTRACT-003.1a Signatures – Contract (March 2007)	
V.6 CONTRACT-004.1a Definitions (Dec 12 2006)	
V.7 CONTRACT-005.1d Purchase Orders (April 2013)	15
V.8 CONTRACT-006.1 Independent Prime Contractor (Oct 2006)	15
V.9 CONTRACT-007.01b Delivery of Services (Nov 30 2006)	
V.10 CONTRACT-007.02 Estimated Quantities (Nov 30 2006)	
V.11 CONTRACT-008.1a Warranty. (Oct 2006)	16
V.12 CONTRACT-009.1c Patent, Copyright, and Trademark Indemnity (Oct 2006)	
V.13 CONTRACT-009.1d Ownership Rights (Oct 2006)	
V.14 CONTRACT-010.1a Acceptance (Oct 2006)	
V.15 CONTRACT-011.1a Compliance With Law (Oct 2006)	
V.16 CONTRACT-013.1 Environmental Provisions (Oct 2006)	
V.17 CONTRACT-014.1 Post-Consumer Recycled Content (Oct 2006)	
V.18 CONTRACT-014.3 Recycled Content Enforcement (February 2012)	
V.19 CONTRACT-015.1 Compensation (Oct 2006)	18
V.20 CONTRACT-015.2 Billing Requirements (February 2012)	
V.21 CONTRACT-016.1 Payment (Oct 2006)	
V.22 CONTRACT-016.2 ACH Payments (Aug 2007)	
V.23 CONTRACT-017.1 Taxes (Dec 5 2006)	
V.24 CONTRACT-018.1 Assignment of Antitrust Claims (Oct 2006)	
V.25 CONTRACT-019.1 Hold Harmless Provision (Nov 30 2006)	
V.26 CONTRACT-020.1 Audit Provisions (Oct 2006)	
V.27 CONTRACT-021.1 Default (Dec 12 2006)	
V.28 CONTRACT-022.1 Force Majeure (Oct 2006)	
V.29 CONTRACT-023.1a Termination Provisions (Dec 2012)	23

V.30 CONTRACT-024.1 Contract Controversies (Oct 2011)	23
V.31 CONTRACT-025.1 Assignability and Subcontracting (Oct 2006)	
V.32 CONTRACT-026.1 Other Contractors (Oct 2006)	24
V.33 CONTRACT-027.1 Nondiscrimination/Sexual Harassment Clause (July 2012)	25
V.34 CONTRACT-028.1 Contractor Integrity Provisions (March 2011)	
V.35 CONTRACT-029.1 Contractor Responsibility Provisions (Nov 2010)	
V.36 CONTRACT-030.1 Americans with Disabilities Act (Oct 2006)	31
V.37 CONTRACT-032.1 Covenant Against Contingent Fees (Oct 2006)	31
V.38 CONTRACT-033.1 Applicable Law (Oct 2006)	31
V.39 CONTRACT- 034.1b Integration (Nov 30 2006)	31
V.40 CONTRACT-034.2b Order of Precedence - IFB (Dec 6 2006)	32
V.41 CONTRACT-034.3 Controlling Terms and Conditions (Aug 2011)	32
V.42 CONTRACT-035.1a Changes (Oct 2006)	32
V.43 CONTRACT-036.1 Background Checks (Feb 2008)	32
V.44 CONTRACT-037.1a Confidentiality (February 2012)	33
V.45 CONTRACT-045.1 Insurance - General (Dec 12 2006)	
V.46 CONTRACT-051.1 Notice (Dec 2006)	34
V.47 CONTRACT-052.1 Right to Know Law (Feb 2010)	34

PART I - GENERAL INFORMATION

PART I - GENERAL INFORMATION

I.1 IFB-001.1 Purpose (Oct 2006)

The Commonwealth of Pennsylvania (Commonwealth) is issuing this Invitation for Bids (IFB) to meet the needs of DEPARTMENT OF GENERAL SERVICES, BUREAU OF PROCUREMENT to satisfy a need for **Records and Document Recovery Services**.

I.2 IFB-005.1 Type of Contract (Oct. 2006)

If the Issuing Office enters into a contract as a result of this IFB, it will be a Established Price Contract contract containing the Contract Terms and Conditions as shown in Part V of this IFB.

I.3 IFB-008.1C No Pre-bid Conference (Oct. 2006)

There will be no pre-bid conference for this IFB. If there are any questions, please forward them to the Issuing Office prior to the bid opening date and time.

I.4 IFB-009.1 Questions (February 2012)

All questions regarding the IFB must be submitted in writing to the email address of the Issuing Officer provided in the solicitation. While there is no set timeline for the submittal of questions, questions received within 48 hours prior to the bid due date and time will be answered at the discretion of the Commonwealth. All questions received will be answered, in writing, and such responses shall be posted to eMarketplace as an addendum to the IFB. The Issuing Officer shall not be bound by any verbal information nor shall it be bound by any written information that is not either contained within the IFB or formally issued as an addendum by the Issuing Office. The Issuing Office does not consider questions to be a protest of the specifications or of the solicitation.

I.5 IFB-010.1 Addenda to the IFB (Oct. 2006)

If the Issuing Office deems it necessary to revise any part of this IFB before the bid response date, the Issuing Office will post an addendum to its website at WWW.DGS.STATE.PA.US it is the Bidder's responsibility to periodically check the website for any new information or addenda to the IFB.

I.6 IFB-011.1B Submission of Bids – Electronic Submittal (May 2011)

- a. Bids are requested for the item(s) described in the Invitation For Bids and all the documents referenced in the form (collectively called the IFB). Bidders must submit their bids through the Commonwealth's electronic system (SRM).
- b. It is the responsibility of each bidder to ensure that its Bid is received through the electronic system prior to the date and time set for the opening of bids ("Bid Opening Time"). No Bid shall be considered if it arrives after

the Bid Opening Time, regardless of reason for the late arrival.

Bids that are timely received prior to the Bid Opening Time shall be opened publicly in the presence of one or more witnesses at the time and place designated in this IFB for the Bid opening.

- c. Bids must be firm. If a Bid is submitted with conditions or exceptions or not in conformance with the terms and conditions referenced in the IFB Form, it shall be rejected. The Bid shall also be rejected if the items offered by the Bidder are not in conformance with the specifications as determined by the Commonwealth.
- d. The Bidder, intending to be legally bound hereby, offers and agrees, if this Bid is accepted, to provide the awarded items at the price(s) set forth in this Bid at the time(s) and place(s) specified.

I.7 IFB-024.1 Bid Protest Procedure (Oct 2006)

a. Who May File the Protest. Any Bidder or prospective bidder who is aggrieved in connection with the IFB or award of the contract solicitation or award of a contract may file a protest. Protests relating to cancellation of invitations for bids and protests relating to the rejection of all bids are <u>not</u> permitted. A Bidder is a person that submits a bid in response to the IFB. A prospective bidder is a person that has not submitted a bid in response to the IFB.

b. Time for Filing.

- 1) If a protest is submitted by a prospective bidder, the protest must be filed before bid opening time or proposal receipt date.
- 2) If a protest is filed by a Bidder, the protest must be filed within seven days after the protesting Bidder knew or should have known of the facts giving rise to the protest EXCEPT THAT IN NO EVENT MAY A PROTEST BE FILED LATER THAN SEVEN (7) DAYS AFTER THE DATE THE CONTRACT OR PURCHASE ORDER WAS AWARDED. Date of filing is the date of receipt of protest.
- 3) Untimely filed protests shall be disregarded.

c. Form of Protest.

- 1) A protest must be in writing and filed with the agency head (or designee) of the purchasing agency.
- 2) A protest must state all grounds upon which the protesting party asserts that the solicitation or award was improper. Issues not raised by the protesting party in the protest are deemed waived and may not be raised on appeal.
- 3) The protesting party may submit with the protest any documents or information deemed relevant.
- d. **Notice of Protest** If award has been made, the agency head (or designee) shall notify the successful Bidder or contractor of the protest. If the protest is received before award and substantial issues are raised by the protest, all Bidders who appear to have a substantial and reasonable prospect of winning the award shall be notified and may file their agreement/disagreement with the purchasing agency within three (3) days after receipt of notice of the protest.

e. **Stay of Procurement.** The head of the purchasing agency (or designee) shall immediately decide, upon receipt of the protest, whether or not the solicitation or award shall be stayed, or if the protest is timely received after the award, whether the performance of the contract should be suspended. The Issuing Office shall not proceed further with the IFB or with the award of the contract, and shall suspend performance under the contract if awarded, unless the agency head of the purchasing agency makes a written determination that the protest is clearly without merit or that award of the contract/purchase order without delay is necessary to protect the substantial interests of the Commonwealth.

f. Procedures.

- 1) **Contracting Officer Response.** Within fifteen (15) days of the receipt of a protest, the contracting officer may submit a written response to the head of the purchasing agency (or designee). The response may include any documents or information that the contracting officer deems relevant to the protest.
- 2) **Protesting Party Reply.** Within ten (10) days of the date of the contracting officer response, the protesting party may file a written reply.
- 3) **Review.** The head of the purchasing agency (or designee) shall:
 - a) Review the protest and any response or reply.
 - b) Request and review any additional documents or information he deems necessary to render a decision.
 - c) Give the protesting party and the contracting officer reasonable opportunity to review and address any additional documents or information requested by the agency head.
 - d) In his sole discretion, conduct a hearing.
 - e) Within sixty (60) days of the receipt of the protest, issue a written determination stating the reasons for the decision.
 - f) If additional time is required to investigate the protest, inform the protesting party of the additional time needed to render a determination and obtain the protesting party's consent.
- 4) "Clearly Without Merit" Determinations. If the head of the purchasing agency (or designee) determines, upon receipt, that the protest is clearly without merit and does not stay the procurement, the head of the purchasing agency (or designee) shall immediately issue the decision as required by Subparagraph h below.
- g. **Settlement.** The Issuing Office has the authority to settle and resolve bid protests.
- h. **Decision.** The head of the purchasing agency (or designee) shall promptly, but in no event later than sixty (60) days from the filing of the protest, issue a written decision. The decision shall:
 - 1) State the reasons for the decision.
 - 2) If the protest is denied, inform the protesting party of its right to file an appeal in Commonwealth Court within fifteen (15) days of the mailing date of the decision.

3) If it is determined that the solicitation or award was contrary to law, enter an appropriate order.

The agency head (or designee) shall send a copy of the decision to the protesting party and any other person determined by the agency head (or designee) to be affected by the decision.

I.8 IFB-025.1 Electronic Version of this IFB (Oct 2006)

This IFB is being made available by electronic means. If a Bidder electronically accepts the IFB, the Bidder acknowledges and accepts full responsibility to insure that no changes are made to the IFB. In the event of a conflict between a version of the IFB in the Bidder's possession and the Issuing Office's version of the IFB, the Issuing Office's version shall govern.

I.9 IFB-029.1 Prices (Dec 6 2006)

The bid submitted by the successful Bidder will be incorporated into any resulting Contract and the Bidder will be required to provide the awarded item(s) at the prices quoted in its Bid.

I.10 IFB-031.1 Alternates (Nov 2006)

A Bidder who wants to offer an alternate must notify the Issuing Office in writing, at least five (5) days prior to the scheduled Bid opening, that the Bidder intends to offer an alternate in its Bid. An "alternate" is a product that deviates from the requirements of the specifications in its composition, qualities, performance, size dimension, etc. The written notification from the Bidder must include a complete description of the alternate and must identify the product's deviations from the specifications. Upon receipt of the notification, the Issuing Office will determine whether the alternate is acceptable. If the Issuing Office, in its discretion, determines that the alternate is acceptable, the Issuing Office will issue a change notice to the invitation for bids that revises the specifications. If no change notice is issued revising the specification, a Bid offering the alternate will not be considered for award.

I.11 IFB-032.1 New Equipment (Nov 2006)

Unless otherwise specified in this invitation for bids, all products offered by Bidders must be new or remanufactured. A 'new' product is one that will be used first by the Commonwealth after it is manufactured or produced. A 'remanufactured' product is one which: 1) has been rebuilt, using new or used parts, to a condition which meets the original manufacturer's most recent specifications for the item; 2) does not, in the opinion of the Issuing Office, differ in appearance from a new item; and 3) has the same warranty as a new item. Unless otherwise specified in this invitation for bids, used or reconditioned products are not acceptable. This clause shall not be construed to prohibit Bidders from offering products with recycled content, provided the product is new or remanufactured.

I.12 I-IFB-033.1 Modification or Withdrawal of Bid (Nov 2006)

a. Bid Modification Prior to Bid Opening. Bids may be modified only by written notice or in person prior to the

exact hour and date specified for Bid opening.

- 1) If a Bidder intends to modify its Bid by written notice, the notice must specifically identify the Bid to be modified and must be signed by the Bidder. The Bidder must include evidence of authorization for the individual who signed the modification to modify the Bid on behalf of the Bidder. The Bid modification must be received in a sealed envelope. The sealed envelope must identify the assigned Collective Number and the Bid Opening Time, and should state that enclosed in the envelope is a Bid modification
- 2) If a Bidder intends to modify its Bid in person, the individual who will modify the Bid must arrive in the Bid Opening Room prior to the Bid Opening Time, show a picture identification and provide evidence of his/her authorization to modify the Bid on behalf of the Bidder. If a Bidder intends to modify its Bid in person, the Bidder may do so only in the presence of an agency employee. (The agency employee will observe the actions taken by the individual to modify the Bid, but will not read the Bid or the modification).
- b. <u>Bid Withdrawal Prior to Bid Opening.</u> Bids may be withdrawn only by written notice or in person prior to the exact hour and date specified for Bid opening.
 - 1) If a Bidder intends to withdraw its Bid by written notice, the notice shall specifically identify the Bid to be withdrawn and shall be signed by the Bidder. The Bidder must include evidence of authorization for the individual who signed the bid withdrawal to withdraw the bid on behalf of the Bidder. Except as provided in Subparagraph c, below, bid withdrawals received after the exact hour and date specified for the receipt of Bids shall not be accepted.
 - 2) If a Bidder intends to withdraw its Bid in person, the individual who will withdraw the Bid must arrive in the Bid Opening Room prior to the Bid Opening Time, show a picture identification and provide evidence of his/her authorization to withdraw the Bid on behalf of the Bidder.
- c. <u>Bid Withdrawal After Bid Opening.</u> Bidders are permitted to withdraw erroneous Bids after Bid opening only if the following conditions are met:
 - 1) The Bidder submits a written request for withdrawal.
 - 2) The Bidder presents credible evidence with the request that the reason for the lower Bid price was a clerical mistake as opposed to a judgment mistake and was actually due to an unintentional arithmetical error or an unintentional omission of a substantial quantity of work, labor, material, or services made directly in the compilation of the Bid.
 - 3) The request for relief and supporting evidence must be received by the Issuing Office within three (3) business days after Bid opening, but before award of the contract.
 - 4) The Issuing Office shall not permit a Bid withdrawal if the Bid withdrawal would result in the award of the contract on another Bid of the same Bidder, its partner, or a corporation or business venture owned by or in which the bidder has a substantial interest.
 - 5) If a Bidder is permitted to withdraw its Bid, the Bidder cannot supply any material or labor or perform any subcontract or other work agreement for the awarded contractor, without the written approval of the Issuing Office.
- d. Firm Bid. Except as provided above, a Bid may not be modified, withdrawn, or cancelled by any Bidder for a

period of sixty (60) days following the time and date designated for Bid opening, unless otherwise specified by the Bidder in its Bid. If the lowest responsible Bidder, as determined by the Issuing Office, withdraws its Bid prior to the expiration of the award period or fails to comply with the requirements set forth in the IFB including but not limited to any requirement to submit performance or payment bonds or insurance certificates within the required time period, the Bidder shall be liable to the Commonwealth for all costs and damages associated with the re-award or re-bid including the difference between the Bidder's price and the actual cost that the Commonwealth pays for the awarded items.

- e. <u>Clarification and Additional Information.</u> After the receipt of Bids, the Issuing Office shall have the right to contact Bidders for the purpose of seeking:
 - 1) Clarification of the Bid which confirms the Issuing Office's understanding of statements or information in the Bid or;
 - 2) Additional information on the items offered; provided the IFB does not require the rejection of the Bid for failure to include such information.

I.13 I-IFB-034.1 Rejection of Bids (Nov 2006)

The Issuing Office reserves the right to reject any and all Bids, to waive technical defects or any informality in Bids, and to accept or reject any part of any Bid if the best interests of the Commonwealth are thereby served.

PART II - REQUIREMENTS

PART II - REQUIREMENTS

II.1 II-IFB-008.1b Lobbying Certification and Disclosure – Electronic Submission. (Oct 2006).

With respect to an award of a federal contract, grant, or cooperative agreement exceeding \$100,000 or an award of a federal loan or a commitment providing for the United States to insure or guarantee a loan exceeding \$150,000 all recipients must certify that they will not use federal funds for lobbying and must disclose the use of non-federal funds for lobbying by filing required documentation. Offerors must complete and return the Lobbying Certification Form and the Disclosure of Lobbying Activities Form, which are attached to and made a part of this IFB. The completed and signed Lobbying Certification Form and the Disclosure of Lobbying Activities Form should be submitted with the Bid Response. Commonwealth agencies will not contract with outside firms or individuals to perform lobbying services, regardless of the source of funds.

II.2 II-IFB-016.1 Post-Submission Descriptive Literature (Dec 2006)

The Commonwealth may, during its evaluation of the bids, require any bidder to submit cuts, illustrations, drawings, prints, test data sheets, specification sheets and brochures which detail construction features, design, components, materials used, applicable dimensions and any other pertinent information which the Issuing Office may require in order to evaluate the product(s) offered. The required information must be submitted within two (2) business days after notification from the Issuing Office. Failure to submit the required information prior to the expiration of the second business day after notification shall result in the rejection of the bid as non-responsive.

PART III - SELECTION CRITERIA

PART III - SELECTION CRITERIA

III.1 III-IFB-001.1a Mandatory Responsiveness Requirements (Oct 2006)

To	be	elig	gible	for	se	lection,	a	bid	must	be:

- a. Timely received from a Bidder;
- b. Properly signed by the Bidder.

III.2 III-IFB-006.1f Method of Award - All Bidders (April 2011)

Award will be made to all responsive and responsible bidders.

III.3 III-IFB-007.1 Awards (May 2011)

Unless all Bids are rejected, and except as otherwise provided by law, award will be made through the issuance of a contract/purchase order in accordance with the method of award. Unless otherwise specified by the Issuing Office in the IFB form the Commonwealth reserves the right to award by item or on a total Bid basis, whichever is deemed more advantageous to the Commonwealth. In cases of discrepancies in prices, the unit price will be binding unless the unit price is obviously in error and the extended price is obviously correct, in which case the erroneous unit price will be corrected. As a condition for receipt of award of a contract/purchase order, the Bidder must be registered in the Commonwealth of Pennsylvania's Vendor Master file. In order to register, bidders must visit the Pa Supplier Portal at https://www.pasupplierportal.state.pa.us/ or call the Customer Support Center at 877-435-7363 or 717-346-2676.

III.4 III-IFB-008.1 Tie Bids (Nov 2006)

All tie bids will be broken by the Issuing Office.

III.5 III-IFB-009.1 Prompt Payment Discounts (Nov 2006)

Prompt payment discounts will not be considered in making an award. If prompt payment discounts are offered by any Bidder, however, the Issuing Office will take advantage of such offer.

III.6 III-IFB-010.1 Option for Separate Competitive Bidding Procedure (Nov 2006)

The Commonwealth reserves the right to purchase products or services covered under this Contract through a separate competitive bidding procedure, whenever Commonwealth deems it in the best interest of the Commonwealth. The right will generally be exercised only when a specific need for a large quantity of the product or service exists or when the price offered is significantly lower than the Contract price.

PART IV - WORK STATEMENT

PART IV - WORK STATEMENT

IV.1 IFB-001.1b Statement of Work (Nov 2006)

The Commonwealth is seeking bids to procure the services set forth in the attached document entitled "Statement of Work."

PART V - CONTRACT TERMS and CONDITIONS

PART V - CONTRACT TERMS and CONDITIONS

V.1 CONTRACT-001.1b Contract Terms and Conditions (Nov 30, 2006)

The Contract with the awarded bidder (who shall become the "Contractor") shall include the following terms and conditions:

V.2 CONTRACT-002.1a Term of Contract – Contract (May 2012)

The initial term of the Contract shall be 03 year(s) and 00 month(s).

The term of the Contract shall commence on the Effective Date (as defined below) and shall end on the Expiration Date identified in the Contract, subject to the other provisions of the Contract.

The Effective Date shall be: a) the Effective Date printed on the Contract after the Contract has been fully executed by the Commonwealth (signed and approved as required by the Commonwealth contracting procedures) or b) the "Valid from" date printed on the Contract, whichever is later.

V.3 CONTRACT-002.2a Renewal of Contract Term (Nov 30 2006)

The Contract may be renewed for a maximum of 2additional 1 year term(s), so long as Commonwealth provides written notice to Contractor of its intention to extend the Contract by letter prior to the expiration of the term of the agreement, or any extension thereof. The Commonwealth may exercise the renewal as individual year or multiple year term(s). Any renewal will be under the same terms, covenants and conditions. No further document is required to be executed to renew the term of the contract.

V.4 CONTRACT-002.3 Extension of Contract Term (Nov 30 2006)

The Commonwealth reserves the right, upon notice to the Contractor, to extend any single term of the Contract for up to three (3) months upon the same terms and conditions.

V.5 CONTRACT-003.1a Signatures – Contract (March 2007)

The Contract shall not be a legally binding contract until the fully-executed Contract has been sent to the Contractor. No Commonwealth employee has the authority to verbally direct the commencement of any work or delivery of any supply under this Contract prior to the Effective Date. The Contractor hereby waives any claim or cause of action for any service or work performed prior to the Effective Date.

The Contract will not include an "ink" signature by the Commonwealth. The electronically-printed name of the Purchasing Agent represents the signature of that individual who has the authority, on behalf of the Commonwealth, to bind the Commonwealth to the terms of the Contract. If the Contract output form does not have "Fully Executed" at the top of the first page and does not have the name of the Purchasing Agent printed in the appropriate box, the Contract has <u>not</u> been fully executed.

The fully-executed Contract may be sent to the Contractor electronically or through facsimile equipment. The electronic transmission of a purchase order shall require acknowledgement of receipt of the transmission by the Contractor. Receipt of the electronic or facsimile transmission of the Contract shall constitute receipt of the fully-executed Contract.

The Commonwealth and the Contractor specifically agree as follows:

- No handwritten signature shall be required in order for the Contract to be legally enforceable.
- b. The parties agree that no writing shall be required in order to make the Contract legally binding, notwithstanding contrary requirements in any law. The parties hereby agree not to contest the validity or enforceability of a genuine Contract or acknowledgement issued electronically under the provisions of a statute of frauds or any other applicable law relating to whether certain agreements be in writing and signed by the party bound thereby. Any genuine Contract or acknowledgement issued electronically, if introduced as evidence on paper in any judicial, arbitration, mediation, or administrative proceedings, will be admissible as between the parties to the same extent and under the same conditions as other business records originated and maintained in documentary form. Neither party shall contest the admissibility of copies of a genuine Contract or acknowledgements under either the business records exception to the hearsay rule or the best evidence rule on the basis that the Contract or acknowledgement were not in writing or signed by the parties. A Contract or acknowledgment shall be deemed to be genuine for all purposes if it is transmitted to the location designated for such documents.
- c. Each party will immediately take steps to verify any document that appears to be obviously garbled in transmission or improperly formatted to include re-transmission of any such document if necessary.

V.6 CONTRACT-004.1a Definitions (Dec 12 2006)

As used in this Contract, these words shall have the following meanings:

- a. <u>Agency</u> The department, board, commission or other agency of the Commonwealth of Pennsylvania listed as the Purchasing Agency. If a COSTARS entity or external procurement activity has issued an order against this contract, that entity shall also be identified as "Agency".
- b. <u>Contracting Officer</u> The person authorized to administer this Contract for the Commonwealth and to make written determinations with respect to the Contract.
- c. <u>Days</u> Unless specifically indicated otherwise, days mean calendar days.
- d. <u>Developed Works or Developed Materials</u> All documents, sketches, drawings, designs, works, papers, files, reports, computer programs, computer documentation, data, records, software, samples or any other tangible material without limitation authored or prepared by Contractor as the work product covered in the scope of work for the Project.

- e. <u>Documentation</u> All materials required to support and convey information about the services required by this Contract. It includes, but is not necessarily restricted to, written reports and analyses, diagrams, maps, logical and physical designs, system designs, computer programs, flow charts, disks, and/or other machine-readable storage media.
- f. <u>Services</u> All Contractor activity necessary to satisfy the Contract.

V.7 CONTRACT-005.1d Purchase Orders (April 2013)

Commonwealth agencies may issue Purchase Orders against the Contract. These orders constitute the Contractor's authority to make delivery. All Purchase Orders received by the Contractor up to and including the expiration date of the Contract are acceptable and must be performed in accordance with the Contract. Each Purchase Order will be deemed to incorporate the terms and conditions set forth in the Contract.

Purchase Orders will not include an "ink" signature by the Agency. The electronically-printed name of the purchaser represents the signature of that individual who has the authority, on behalf of the Commonwealth, to authorize the Contractor to proceed.

Purchase Orders may be issued electronically or through facsimile equipment. The electronic transmission of a purchase order shall require acknowledgement of receipt of the transmission by the Contractor. Receipt of the electronic or facsimile transmission of the Purchase Order shall constitute receipt of an order. Orders received by the Contractor after 4:00 p.m. will be considered received the following business day.

- a. No handwritten signature shall be required in order for the Contract or Purchase Order to be legally enforceable.
- b. The parties agree that no writing shall be required in order to make the Purchase Order legally binding. The parties hereby agree not to contest the validity or enforceability of a Purchase Order or acknowledgement issued electronically under the provisions of a statute of frauds or any other applicable law relating to whether certain agreements be in writing and signed by the party bound thereby. Any Purchase Order or acknowledgement issued electronically, if introduced as evidence on paper in any judicial, arbitration, mediation, or administrative proceedings, will be admissible as between the parties to the same extent and under the same conditions as other business records originated and maintained in documentary form. Neither party shall contest the admissibility of copies of Purchase Orders or acknowledgements under either the business records exception to the hearsay rule or the best evidence rule on the basis that the Purchase Order or acknowledgement were not in writing or signed by the parties. A Purchase Order or acknowledgment shall be deemed to be genuine for all purposes if it is transmitted to the location designated for such documents.
- c. Each party will immediately take steps to verify any document that appears to be obviously garbled in transmission or improperly formatted to include re-transmission of any such document if necessary.

Purchase Orders under ten thousand dollars (\$10,000) in total amount may also be made in person or by telephone using a Commonwealth Purchasing Card. When an order is placed by telephone, the Commonwealth agency shall provide the agency name, employee name, credit card number, and expiration date of the card. Contractors agree to accept payment through the use of the Commonwealth Purchasing Card.

V.8 CONTRACT-006.1 Independent Prime Contractor (Oct 2006)

In performing its obligations under the Contract, the Contractor will act as an independent contractor and not as an employee or agent of the Commonwealth. The Contractor will be responsible for all services in this Contract whether or not Contractor provides them directly. Further, the Contractor is the sole point of contact with regard to all contractual matters, including payment of any and all charges resulting from the Contract.

V.9 CONTRACT-007.01b Delivery of Services (Nov 30 2006)

The Contractor shall proceed with all due diligence in the performance of the services with qualified personnel, in accordance with the completion criteria set forth in the Contract.

V.10 CONTRACT-007.02 Estimated Quantities (Nov 30 2006)

It shall be understood and agreed that any quantities listed in the Contract are estimated only and may be increased or decreased in accordance with the actual requirements of the Commonwealth and that the Commonwealth in accepting any bid or portion thereof, contracts only and agrees to purchase only the materials and services in such quantities as represent the actual requirements of the Commonwealth. The Commonwealth reserves the right to purchase materials and services covered under the Contract through a separate competitive procurement procedure, whenever Commonwealth deems it to be in its best interest.

V.11 CONTRACT-008.1a Warranty. (Oct 2006)

The Contractor warrants that all items furnished and all services performed by the Contractor, its agents and subcontractors shall be free and clear of any defects in workmanship or materials. Unless otherwise stated in the Contract, all items are warranted for a period of one year following delivery by the Contractor and acceptance by the Commonwealth. The Contractor shall repair, replace or otherwise correct any problem with the delivered item. When an item is replaced, it shall be replaced with an item of equivalent or superior quality without any additional cost to the Commonwealth.

V.12 CONTRACT-009.1c Patent, Copyright, and Trademark Indemnity (Oct 2006)

The Contractor warrants that it is the sole owner or author of, or has entered into a suitable legal agreement concerning either: a) the design of any product or process provided or used in the performance of the Contract which is covered by a patent, copyright, or trademark registration or other right duly authorized by state or federal law or b) any copyrighted matter in any report document or other material provided to the Commonwealth under the contract.

The Contractor shall defend any suit or proceeding brought against the Commonwealth on account of any alleged patent, copyright or trademark infringement in the United States of any of the products provided or used in the performance of the Contract.

This is upon condition that the Commonwealth shall provide prompt notification in writing of such suit or proceeding; full right, authorization and opportunity to conduct the defense thereof; and full information and all reasonable cooperation for the defense of same.

As principles of governmental or public law are involved, the Commonwealth may participate in or choose to conduct, in its sole discretion, the defense of any such action.

If information and assistance are furnished by the Commonwealth at the Contractor's written request, it shall be at the Contractor's expense, but the responsibility for such expense shall be only that within the Contractor's written authorization.

The Contractor shall indemnify and hold the Commonwealth harmless from all damages, costs, and expenses, including attorney's fees that the Contractor or the Commonwealth may pay or incur by reason of any infringement or violation of the rights occurring to any holder of copyright, trademark, or patent interests and rights in any products provided or used in the performance of the Contract.

If any of the products provided by the Contractor in such suit or proceeding are held to constitute infringement and the use is enjoined, the Contractor shall, at its own expense and at its option, either procure the right to continue use of such infringement products, replace them with non-infringement equal performance products or modify them so that they are no longer infringing.

If the Contractor is unable to do any of the preceding, the Contractor agrees to remove all the equipment or software which are obtained contemporaneously with the infringing product, or, at the option of the Commonwealth, only those items of equipment or software which are held to be infringing, and to pay the Commonwealth: 1) any amounts paid by the Commonwealth towards the purchase of the product, less straight line depreciation; 2) any license fee paid by the Commonwealth for the use of any software, less an amount for the period of usage; and 3) the pro rata portion of any maintenance fee representing the time remaining in any period of maintenance paid for. The obligations of the Contractor under this paragraph continue without time limit. No costs or expenses shall be incurred for the account of the Contractor without its written consent.

V.13 CONTRACT-009.1d Ownership Rights (Oct 2006)

The Commonwealth shall have unrestricted authority to reproduce, distribute, and use any submitted report, data, or material, and any software or modifications and any associated documentation that is designed or developed and delivered to the Commonwealth as part of the performance of the Contract.

V.14 CONTRACT-010.1a Acceptance (Oct 2006)

No item(s) received by the Commonwealth shall be deemed accepted until the Commonwealth has had a reasonable opportunity to inspect the item(s). Any item(s) which is discovered to be defective or fails to conform to the specifications may be rejected upon initial inspection or at any later time if the defects contained in the item(s) or the noncompliance with the specifications were not reasonably ascertainable upon the initial inspection. It shall thereupon become the duty of the Contractor to remove rejected item(s) from the premises without expense to the Commonwealth within fifteen (15) days after notification. Rejected item(s) left longer than fifteen (15) days will be regarded as abandoned, and the Commonwealth shall have the right to dispose of them as its own property and shall retain that portion of the proceeds of any sale which represents the Commonwealth's costs and expenses in regard to the storage and sale of the item(s). Upon notice of rejection, the Contractor shall immediately replace all such rejected item(s) with others conforming to the specifications and which are not defective. If the Contractor fails, neglects or refuses to do so, the Commonwealth shall then have the right to procure a corresponding quantity of such item(s), and deduct from any monies due or that may thereafter become due to the Contractor, the difference between the price stated in the Contract and the cost thereof to the Commonwealth.

V.15 CONTRACT-011.1a Compliance With Law (Oct 2006)

The Contractor shall comply with all applicable federal and state laws and regulations and local ordinances in the

performance of the Contract.

V.16 CONTRACT-013.1 Environmental Provisions (Oct 2006)

In the performance of the Contract, the Contractor shall minimize pollution and shall strictly comply with all applicable environmental laws and regulations, including, but not limited to: the Clean Streams Law Act of June 22, 1937 (P.L. 1987, No. 394), as amended 35 P.S. Section 691.601 et seq.; the Pennsylvania Solid Waste Management Act, Act of July 7, 1980 (P.L. 380, No. 97), as amended, 35 P.S. Section 6018.101 et seq.; and the Dam Safety and Encroachment Act, Act of November 26, 1978 (P.L. 1375, No. 325), as amended , 32 P.S. Section 693.1.

V.17 CONTRACT-014.1 Post-Consumer Recycled Content (Oct 2006)

Except as specifically waived by the Department of General Services in writing, any products which are provided to the Commonwealth as a part of the performance of the Contract must meet the minimum percentage levels for total recycled content as specified on the Department of General Services website at www.emarketplace.state.pa.us on the date of submission of the bid, proposal or contract offer.

V.18 CONTRACT-014.3 Recycled Content Enforcement (February 2012)

The Contractor may be required, after delivery of the Contract item(s), to provide the Commonwealth with documentary evidence that the item(s) was in fact produced with the required minimum percentage of post-consumer and recovered material content.

V.19 CONTRACT-015.1 Compensation (Oct 2006)

The Contractor shall be required to furnish the awarded item(s) at the price(s) quoted in the Purchase Order. All item(s) shall be delivered within the time period(s) specified in the Purchase Order. The Contractor shall be compensated only for item(s) that are delivered and accepted by the Commonwealth.

V.20 CONTRACT-015.2 Billing Requirements (February 2012)

Unless the Contractor has been authorized by the Commonwealth for Evaluated Receipt Settlement or Vendor Self-Invoicing, the Contractor shall include in all of its invoices the following minimum information:

- Vendor name and "Remit to" address, including SAP Vendor number;
- Bank routing information, if ACH;
- SAP Purchase Order number;
- Delivery Address, including name of Commonwealth agency;
- Description of the supplies/services delivered in accordance with SAP Purchase Order (include purchase order line number if possible);
- Quantity provided;
- Unit price;

- Price extension;
- Total price; and
- Delivery date of supplies or services.

If an invoice does not contain the minimum information set forth in this paragraph, the Commonwealth may return the invoice as improper. If the Commonwealth returns an invoice as improper, the time for processing a payment will be suspended until the Commonwealth receives a correct invoice. The Contractor may not receive payment until the Commonwealth has received a correct invoice.

Contractors are required to establish separate billing accounts with each using agency and invoice them directly. Each invoice shall be itemized with adequate detail and match the line item on the Purchase Order. In no instance shall any payment be made for services to the Contractor that are not in accordance with the prices on the Purchase Order, the Contract, updated price lists or any discounts negotiated by the purchasing agency.

V.21 CONTRACT-016.1 Payment (Oct 2006)

- a. The Commonwealth shall put forth reasonable efforts to make payment by the required payment date. The required payment date is: (a) the date on which payment is due under the terms of the Contract; (b) thirty (30) days after a proper invoice actually is received at the "Bill To" address if a date on which payment is due is not specified in the Contract (a "proper" invoice is not received until the Commonwealth accepts the service as satisfactorily performed); or (c) the payment date specified on the invoice if later than the dates established by (a) and (b) above. Payment may be delayed if the payment amount on an invoice is not based upon the price(s) as stated in the Contract. If any payment is not made within fifteen (15) days after the required payment date, the Commonwealth may pay interest as determined by the Secretary of Budget in accordance with Act No. 266 of 1982 and regulations promulgated pursuant thereto. Payment should not be construed by the Contractor as acceptance of the service performed by the Contractor. The Commonwealth reserves the right to conduct further testing and inspection after payment, but within a reasonable time after performance, and to reject the service if such post payment testing or inspection discloses a defect or a failure to meet specifications. The Contractor agrees that the Commonwealth may set off the amount of any state tax liability or other obligation of the Contractor or its subsidiaries to the Commonwealth against any payments due the Contractor under any contract with the Commonwealth.
- b. The Commonwealth shall have the option of using the Commonwealth purchasing card to make purchases under the Contract or Purchase Order. The Commonwealth's purchasing card is similar to a credit card in that there will be a small fee which the Contractor will be required to pay and the Contractor will receive payment directly from the card issuer rather than the Commonwealth. Any and all fees related to this type of payment are the responsibility of the Contractor. In no case will the Commonwealth allow increases in prices to offset credit card fees paid by the Contractor or any other charges incurred by the Contractor, unless specifically stated in the terms of the Contract or Purchase Order.

V.22 CONTRACT-016.2 ACH Payments (Aug 2007)

- a. The Commonwealth will make contract payments through the Automated Clearing House (ACH). Within 10 days of award of the contract or purchase order, the contractor must submit or must have already submitted their ACH information within their user profile in the Commonwealth's procurement system (SRM).
- b. The contractor must submit a unique invoice number with each invoice submitted. The unique invoice number will be listed on the Commonwealth of Pennsylvania's ACH remittance advice to enable the contractor to properly apply the state agency's payment to the invoice submitted.
- c. It is the responsibility of the contractor to ensure that the ACH information contained in SRM

is accurate and complete. Failure to maintain accurate and complete information may result in delays in payments.

V.23 CONTRACT-017.1 Taxes (Dec 5 2006)

The Commonwealth is exempt from all excise taxes imposed by the Internal Revenue Service and has accordingly registered with the Internal Revenue Service to make tax free purchases under Registration No. 23-23740001-K. With the exception of purchases of the following items, no exemption certificates are required and none will be issued: undyed diesel fuel, tires, trucks, gas guzzler emergency vehicles, and sports fishing equipment. The Commonwealth is also exempt from Pennsylvania state sales tax, local sales tax, public transportation assistance taxes and fees and vehicle rental tax. The Department of Revenue regulations provide that exemption certificates are not required for sales made to governmental entities and none will be issued. Nothing in this paragraph is meant to exempt a construction contractor from the payment of any of these taxes or fees which are required to be paid with respect to the purchase, use, rental, or lease of tangible personal property or taxable services used or transferred in connection with the performance of a construction contract.

V.24 CONTRACT-018.1 Assignment of Antitrust Claims (Oct 2006)

The Contractor and the Commonwealth recognize that in actual economic practice, overcharges by the Contractor's suppliers resulting from violations of state or federal antitrust laws are in fact borne by the Commonwealth. As part of the consideration for the award of the Contract, and intending to be legally bound, the Contractor assigns to the Commonwealth all right, title and interest in and to any claims the Contractor now has, or may acquire, under state or federal antitrust laws relating to the products and services which are the subject of this Contract.

V.25 CONTRACT-019.1 Hold Harmless Provision (Nov 30 2006)

- a. The Contractor shall hold the Commonwealth harmless from and indemnify the Commonwealth against any and all third party claims, demands and actions based upon or arising out of any activities performed by the Contractor and its employees and agents under this Contract, provided the Commonwealth gives Contractor prompt notice of any such claim of which it learns. Pursuant to the Commonwealth Attorneys Act (71 P.S. Section 732-101, et seq.), the Office of Attorney General (OAG) has the sole authority to represent the Commonwealth in actions brought against the Commonwealth. The OAG may, however, in its sole discretion and under such terms as it deems appropriate, delegate its right of defense. If OAG delegates the defense to the Contractor, the Commonwealth will cooperate with all reasonable requests of Contractor made in the defense of such suits.
- b. Notwithstanding the above, neither party shall enter into any settlement without the other party's written consent, which shall not be unreasonably withheld. The Commonwealth may, in its sole discretion, allow the Contractor to control the defense and any related settlement negotiations.

V.26 CONTRACT-020.1 Audit Provisions (Oct 2006)

The Commonwealth shall have the right, at reasonable times and at a site designated by the Commonwealth, to audit the books, documents and records of the Contractor to the extent that the books, documents and records relate to costs or pricing data for the Contract. The Contractor agrees to maintain records which will support the prices charged and costs incurred for the Contract. The Contractor shall preserve books, documents, and records that relate to costs or pricing data for the Contract for a period of three (3) years from date of final payment. The Contractor shall give full and free access to all records to the Commonwealth and/or their authorized representatives.

V.27 CONTRACT-021.1 Default (Dec 12 2006)

- a. The Commonwealth may, subject to the Force Majeure provisions of this Contract, and in addition to its other rights under the Contract, declare the Contractor in default by written notice thereof to the Contractor, and terminate (as provided in the Termination Provisions of this Contract) the whole or any part of this Contract or any Purchase Order for any of the following reasons:
 - 1) Failure to begin work within the time specified in the Contract or Purchase Order or as otherwise specified;
 - 2) Failure to perform the work with sufficient labor, equipment, or material to insure the completion of the specified work in accordance with the Contract or Purchase Order terms;
 - 3) Unsatisfactory performance of the work;
 - 4) Failure to deliver the awarded item(s) within the time specified in the Contract or Purchase Order or as otherwise specified;
 - 5) Improper delivery;
 - 6) Failure to provide an item(s) which is in conformance with the specifications referenced in the Contract or Purchase Order;
 - 7) Delivery of a defective item;
 - 8) Failure or refusal to remove material, or remove and replace any work rejected as defective or unsatisfactory;
 - 9) Discontinuance of work without approval;
 - 10) Failure to resume work, which has been discontinued, within a reasonable time after notice to do so;
 - 11) Insolvency or bankruptcy;
 - 12) Assignment made for the benefit of creditors;
 - 13) Failure or refusal within 10 days after written notice by the Contracting Officer, to make payment or show cause why payment should not be made, of any amounts due for materials furnished, labor supplied or performed, for equipment rentals, or for utility services rendered;
 - 14) Failure to protect, to repair, or to make good any damage or injury to property;
 - 15) Breach of any provision of the Contract;
 - 16) Failure to comply with representations made in the Contractor's bid/proposal; or

- 17) Failure to comply with applicable industry standards, customs, and practice.
- b. In the event that the Commonwealth terminates this Contract or any Purchase Order in whole or in part as provided in Subparagraph a. above, the Commonwealth may procure, upon such terms and in such manner as it determines, items similar or identical to those so terminated, and the Contractor shall be liable to the Commonwealth for any reasonable excess costs for such similar or identical items included within the terminated part of the Contract or Purchase Order.
- c. If the Contract or a Purchase Order is terminated as provided in Subparagraph a. above, the Commonwealth, in addition to any other rights provided in this paragraph, may require the Contractor to transfer title and deliver immediately to the Commonwealth in the manner and to the extent directed by the Contracting Officer, such partially completed items, including, where applicable, reports, working papers and other documentation, as the Contractor has specifically produced or specifically acquired for the performance of such part of the Contract or Purchase Order as has been terminated. Except as provided below, payment for completed work accepted by the Commonwealth shall be at the Contract price. Except as provided below, payment for partially completed items including, where applicable, reports and working papers, delivered to and accepted by the Commonwealth shall be in an amount agreed upon by the Contractor and Contracting Officer. The Commonwealth may withhold from amounts otherwise due the Contractor for such completed or partially completed works, such sum as the Contracting Officer determines to be necessary to protect the Commonwealth against loss.
- d. The rights and remedies of the Commonwealth provided in this paragraph shall not be exclusive and are in addition to any other rights and remedies provided by law or under this Contract.
- e. The Commonwealth's failure to exercise any rights or remedies provided in this paragraph shall not be construed to be a waiver by the Commonwealth of its rights and remedies in regard to the event of default or any succeeding event of default.
- f. Following exhaustion of the Contractor's administrative remedies as set forth in the Contract Controversies Provision of the Contract, the Contractor's exclusive remedy shall be to seek damages in the Board of Claims.

V.28 CONTRACT-022.1 Force Majeure (Oct 2006)

Neither party will incur any liability to the other if its performance of any obligation under this Contract is prevented or delayed by causes beyond its control and without the fault or negligence of either party. Causes beyond a party's control may include, but aren't limited to, acts of God or war, changes in controlling law, regulations, orders or the requirements of any governmental entity, severe weather conditions, civil disorders, natural disasters, fire, epidemics and quarantines, general strikes throughout the trade, and freight embargoes.

The Contractor shall notify the Commonwealth orally within five (5) days and in writing within ten (10) days of the date on which the Contractor becomes aware, or should have reasonably become aware, that such cause would prevent or delay its performance. Such notification shall (i) describe fully such cause(s) and its effect on performance, (ii) state whether performance under the contract is prevented or delayed and (iii) if performance is delayed, state a reasonable estimate of the duration of the delay. The Contractor shall have the burden of proving that such cause(s) delayed or prevented its performance despite its diligent efforts to perform and shall produce such supporting documentation as the Commonwealth may reasonably request. After receipt of such notification, the Commonwealth may elect to cancel the Contract, cancel the Purchase Order, or to extend the time for performance as reasonably necessary to compensate for the Contractor's delay.

In the event of a declared emergency by competent governmental authorities, the Commonwealth by notice to the Contractor, may suspend all or a portion of the Contract or Purchase Order.

V.29 CONTRACT-023.1a Termination Provisions (Dec 2012)

The Commonwealth has the right to terminate this Contract or any Purchase Order for any of the following reasons. Termination shall be effective upon written notice to the Contractor.

- a. **TERMINATION FOR CONVENIENCE**: The Commonwealth shall have the right to terminate the Contract or a Purchase Order for its convenience if the Commonwealth determines termination to be in its best interest. The Contractor shall be paid for work satisfactorily completed prior to the effective date of the termination, but in no event shall the Contractor be entitled to recover loss of profits.
- b. NON-APPROPRIATION: The Commonwealth's obligation to make payments during any Commonwealth fiscal year succeeding the current fiscal year shall be subject to availability and appropriation of funds. When funds (state and/or federal) are not appropriated or otherwise made available to support continuation of performance in a subsequent fiscal year period, the Commonwealth shall have the right to terminate the Contract or a Purchase Order. The Contractor shall be reimbursed for the reasonable value of any nonrecurring costs incurred but not amortized in the price of the supplies or services delivered under the Contract. Such reimbursement shall not include loss of profit, loss of use of money, or administrative or overhead costs. The reimbursement amount may be paid from any appropriations available for that purpose.
- c. **TERMINATION FOR CAUSE**: The Commonwealth shall have the right to terminate the Contract or a Purchase Order for Contractor default under Default Clause upon written notice to the Contractor. The Commonwealth shall also have the right, upon written notice to the Contractor, to terminate the Contract or a Purchase Order for other cause as specified in the Contract or by law. If it is later determined that the Commonwealth erred in terminating the Contract or a Purchase Order for cause, then, at the Commonwealth's discretion, the Contract or Purchase Order shall be deemed to have been terminated for convenience under the Subparagraph a.

V.30 CONTRACT-024.1 Contract Controversies (Oct 2011)

- a. In the event of a controversy or claim arising from the Contract, the Contractor must, within six months after the cause of action accrues, file a written claim with the contracting officer for a determination. The claim shall state all grounds upon which the Contractor asserts a controversy exists. If the Contractor fails to file a claim or files an untimely claim, the Contractor is deemed to have waived its right to assert a claim in any forum. At the time the claim is filed, or within sixty (60) days thereafter, either party may request mediation through the Commonwealth Office of General Counsel Dispute Resolution Program.
- b. If the Contractor or the contracting officer requests mediation and the other party agrees, the contracting officer shall promptly make arrangements for mediation. Mediation shall be scheduled so as to not delay the issuance of the final determination beyond the required 120 days after receipt of the claim if mediation is unsuccessful. If mediation is not agreed to or if resolution is not reached through mediation, the contracting officer shall review timely-filed claims and issue a final determination, in writing, regarding the claim. The final determination shall be issued within 120 days of the receipt of the claim, unless extended by consent of the contractor officer and the Contractor. The contracting officer shall send his/her written determination to the Contractor. If the contracting officer fails to issue a final determination within the 120 days (unless extended by consent of the parties), the claim shall be deemed denied. The contracting officer's determination shall be the final order of the purchasing agency.

c. Within fifteen (15) days of the mailing date of the determination denying a claim or within 135 days of filing a claim if, no extension is agreed to by the parties, whichever occurs first, the Contractor may file a statement of claim with the Commonwealth Board of Claims. Pending a final judicial resolution of a controversy or claim, the Contractor shall proceed diligently with the performance of the Contract in a manner consistent with the determination of the contracting officer and the Commonwealth shall compensate the Contractor pursuant to the terms of the Contract.

V.31 CONTRACT-025.1 Assignability and Subcontracting (Oct 2006)

- a. Subject to the terms and conditions of this paragraph, this Contract shall be binding upon the parties and their respective successors and assigns.
- b. The Contractor shall not subcontract with any person or entity to perform all or any part of the work to be performed under this Contract without the prior written consent of the Contracting Officer, which consent may be withheld at the sole and absolute discretion of the Contracting Officer.
- c. The Contractor may not assign, in whole or in part, this Contract or its rights, duties, obligations, or responsibilities hereunder without the prior written consent of the Contracting Officer, which consent may be withheld at the sole and absolute discretion of the Contracting Officer.
- d. Notwithstanding the foregoing, the Contractor may, without the consent of the Contracting Officer, assign its rights to payment to be received under the Contract, provided that the Contractor provides written notice of such assignment to the Contracting Officer together with a written acknowledgement from the assignee that any such payments are subject to all of the terms and conditions of this Contract.
- e. For the purposes of this Contract, the term "assign" shall include, but shall not be limited to, the sale, gift, assignment, pledge, or other transfer of any ownership interest in the Contractor provided, however, that the term shall not apply to the sale or other transfer of stock of a publicly traded company.
- f . Any assignment consented to by the Contracting Officer shall be evidenced by a written assignment agreement executed by the Contractor and its assignee in which the assignee agrees to be legally bound by all of the terms and conditions of the Contract and to assume the duties, obligations, and responsibilities being assigned.
- g. A change of name by the Contractor, following which the Contractor's federal identification number remains unchanged, shall not be considered to be an assignment hereunder. The Contractor shall give the Contracting Officer written notice of any such change of name.

V.32 CONTRACT-026.1 Other Contractors (Oct 2006)

The Commonwealth may undertake or award other contracts for additional or related work, and the Contractor shall fully cooperate with other contractors and Commonwealth employees, and coordinate its work with such additional work as may be required. The Contractor shall not commit or permit any act that will interfere with the performance of work by any other contractor or by Commonwealth employees. This paragraph shall be included in the Contracts of all contractors with which this Contractor will be required to cooperate. The Commonwealth shall equitably enforce this paragraph as to all contractors to prevent the imposition of unreasonable burdens on any contractor.

V.33 CONTRACT-027.1 Nondiscrimination/Sexual Harassment Clause (July 2012)

The Contractor agrees:

- 1. In the hiring of any employee(s) for the manufacture of supplies, performance of work, or any other activity required under the contract or any subcontract, the Contractor, each subcontractor, or any person acting on behalf of the Contractor or subcontractor shall not, by reason of gender, race, creed, or color, discriminate against any citizen of this Commonwealth who is qualified and available to perform the work to which the employment relates.
- 2. Neither the Contractor nor any subcontractor nor any person on their behalf shall in any manner discriminate against or intimidate any employee involved in the manufacture of supplies, the performance of work, or any other activity required under the contract on account of gender, race, creed, or color.
- 3. The Contractor and each subcontractor shall establish and maintain a written sexual harassment policy and shall inform their employees of the policy. The policy must contain a notice that sexual harassment will not be tolerated and employees who practice it will be disciplined.
- **4.** The Contractor and each subcontractor shall not discriminate by reason of gender, race, creed, or color against any subcontractor or supplier who is qualified to perform the work to which the contract relates.
- 5. The Contractor and each subcontractor shall, within the time periods requested by the Commonwealth, furnish all necessary employment documents and records and permit access to their books, records, and accounts by the contracting agency and the Bureau of Small Business Opportunities (BSBO), for purpose of ascertaining compliance with provisions of this Nondiscrimination/Sexual Harassment Clause. Within fifteen (15) days after award of any contract, the Contractor shall be required to complete, sign and submit Form STD-21, the "Initial Contract Compliance Data" form. If the contract is a construction contract, then the Contractor shall be required to complete, sign and submit Form STD-28, the "Monthly Contract Compliance Report for Construction Contractors", each month no later than the 15th of the month following the reporting period beginning with the initial job conference and continuing through the completion of the project. Those contractors who have fewer than five employees or whose employees are all from the same family or who have completed the Form STD-21 within the past 12 months may, within the 15 days, request an exemption from the Form STD-21 submission requirement from the contracting agency.
- **6.** The Contractor shall include the provisions of this Nondiscrimination/Sexual Harassment Clause in every subcontract so that those provisions applicable to subcontractors will be binding upon each subcontractor.
- 7. The Commonwealth may cancel or terminate the contract and all money due or to become due under the contract may be forfeited for a violation of the terms and conditions of this Nondiscrimination/Sexual Harassment Clause. In addition, the agency may proceed with debarment or suspension and may place the Contractor in the Contractor Responsibility File.

V.34 CONTRACT-028.1 Contractor Integrity Provisions (March 2011)

It is essential that those who seek to contract with the Commonwealth of Pennsylvania ("Commonwealth") observe high standards of honesty and integrity. They must conduct themselves in a manner that fosters public confidence in the integrity of the Commonwealth procurement process.

In furtherance of this policy, Contractor agrees to the following:

1. Contractor shall maintain the highest standards of honesty and integrity during the performance of this contract and shall take no action in violation of state or federal laws or regulations or any other

applicable laws or regulations, or other requirements applicable to Contractor or that govern contracting with the Commonwealth.

- 2. Contractor shall establish and implement a written business integrity policy, which includes, at a minimum, the requirements of these provisions as they relate to Contractor employee activity with the Commonwealth and Commonwealth employees, and which is distributed and made known to all Contractor employees.
- **3.** Contractor, its affiliates, agents and employees shall not influence, or attempt to influence, any Commonwealth employee to breach the standards of ethical conduct for Commonwealth employees set forth in the *Public Official and Employees Ethics Act*, 65 Pa.C.S. §§1101 et seq.; the State Adverse Interest Act, 71 P.S. §776.1 et seq.; and the Governor's Code of Conduct, Executive Order 1980-18, 4 Pa. Code §7.151 et seq., or to breach any other state or federal law or regulation.
- **4.** Contractor, its affiliates, agents and employees shall not offer, give, or agree or promise to give any gratuity to a Commonwealth official or employee or to any other person at the direction or request of any Commonwealth official or employee.
- 5. Contractor, its affiliates, agents and employees shall not offer, give, or agree or promise to give any gratuity to a Commonwealth official or employee or to any other person, the acceptance of which would violate the *Governor's Code of Conduct, Executive Order 1980-18*, 4 Pa. Code §7.151 et seq. or any statute, regulation, statement of policy, management directive or any other published standard of the Commonwealth.
- **6.** Contractor, its affiliates, agents and employees shall not, directly or indirectly, offer, confer, or agree to confer any pecuniary benefit on anyone as consideration for the decision, opinion, recommendation, vote, other exercise of discretion, or violation of a known legal duty by any Commonwealth official or employee.
- 7. Contractor, its affiliates, agents, employees, or anyone in privity with him or her shall not accept or agree to accept from any person, any gratuity in connection with the performance of work under the contract, except as provided in the contract.
- **8.** Contractor shall not have a financial interest in any other contractor, subcontractor, or supplier providing services, labor, or material on this project, unless the financial interest is disclosed to the Commonwealth in writing and the Commonwealth consents to Contractor's financial interest prior to Commonwealth execution of the contract. Contractor shall disclose the financial interest to the Commonwealth at the time of bid or proposal submission, or if no bids or proposals are solicited, no later than Contractor's submission of the contract signed by Contractor.
- **9.** Contractor, its affiliates, agents and employees shall not disclose to others any information, documents, reports, data, or records provided to, or prepared by, Contractor under this contract without the prior written approval of the Commonwealth, except as required by the *Pennsylvania Right-to-Know Law*, 65 P.S. §§ 67.101-3104, or other applicable law or as otherwise provided in this contract. Any information, documents, reports, data, or records secured by Contractor from the Commonwealth or a third party in connection with the performance of this contract shall be kept confidential unless disclosure of such information is:
 - **a.** Approved in writing by the Commonwealth prior to its disclosure; or
 - **b.** Directed by a court or other tribunal of competent jurisdiction unless the contract requires

prior Commonwealth approval; or

- **c.** Required for compliance with federal or state securities laws or the requirements of national securities exchanges; or
- **d.** Necessary for purposes of Contractor's internal assessment and review; or
- **e.** Deemed necessary by Contractor in any action to enforce the provisions of this contract or to defend or prosecute claims by or against parties other than the Commonwealth; or
- **f.** Permitted by the valid authorization of a third party to whom the information, documents, reports, data, or records pertain: or
- **g.** Otherwise required by law.
- 10. Contractor certifies that neither it nor any of its officers, directors, associates, partners, limited partners or individual owners has been officially notified of, charged with, or convicted of any of the following and agrees to immediately notify the Commonwealth agency contracting officer in writing if and when it or any officer, director, associate, partner, limited partner or individual owner has been officially notified of, charged with, convicted of, or officially notified of a governmental determination of any of the following:
 - **a.** Commission of embezzlement, theft, forgery, bribery, falsification or destruction of records, making false statements or receiving stolen property.
 - **b.** Commission of fraud or a criminal offense or other improper conduct or knowledge of, approval of or acquiescence in such activities by Contractor or any affiliate, officer, director, associate, partner, limited partner, individual owner, or employee or other individual or entity associated with:
 - (1) obtaining;
 - (2) attempting to obtain; or
 - (3) performing a public contract or subcontract.

Contractor's acceptance of the benefits derived from the conduct shall be deemed evidence of such knowledge, approval or acquiescence.

- **c.** Violation of federal or state antitrust statutes.
- **d.** Violation of any federal or state law regulating campaign contributions.
- **e.** Violation of any federal or state environmental law.
- **f.** Violation of any federal or state law regulating hours of labor, minimum wage standards or prevailing wage standards; discrimination in wages; or child labor violations.

- **g.** Violation of the *Act of June 2, 1915 (P.L.736, No. 338)*, known as the *Workers' Compensation Act, 77* P.S. 1 *et seq.*
- **h.** Violation of any federal or state law prohibiting discrimination in employment.
- i. Debarment by any agency or department of the federal government or by any other state.
- **j.** Any other crime involving moral turpitude or business honesty or integrity.

Contractor acknowledges that the Commonwealth may, in its sole discretion, terminate the contract for cause upon such notification or when the Commonwealth otherwise learns that Contractor has been officially notified, charged, or convicted.

- 11. If this contract was awarded to Contractor on a non-bid basis, Contractor must, (as required by *Section 1641* of the *Pennsylvania Election Code*) file a report of political contributions with the Secretary of the Commonwealth on or before February 15 of the next calendar year. The report must include an itemized list of all political contributions known to Contractor by virtue of the knowledge possessed by every officer, director, associate, partner, limited partner, or individual owner that has been made by:
 - **a.** Any officer, director, associate, partner, limited partner, individual owner or members of the immediate family when the contributions exceed an aggregate of one thousand dollars (\$1,000) by any individual during the preceding year; or
 - **b.** Any employee or members of his immediate family whose political contribution exceeded one thousand dollars (\$1,000) during the preceding year.

To obtain a copy of the reporting form, Contractor shall contact the Bureau of Commissions, Elections and Legislation, Division of Campaign Finance and Lobbying Disclosure, Room 210, North Office Building, Harrisburg, PA 17120.

- 12. Contractor shall comply with requirements of the *Lobbying Disclosure Act*, 65 Pa.C.S. § 13A01 et seq., and the regulations promulgated pursuant to that law. Contractor employee activities prior to or outside of formal Commonwealth procurement communication protocol are considered lobbying and subjects the Contractor employees to the registration and reporting requirements of the law. Actions by outside lobbyists on Contractor's behalf, no matter the procurement stage, are not exempt and must be reported.
- 13. When Contractor has reason to believe that any breach of ethical standards as set forth in law, the Governor's Code of Conduct, or in these provisions has occurred or may occur, including but not limited to contact by a Commonwealth officer or employee which, if acted upon, would violate such ethical standards, Contractor shall immediately notify the Commonwealth contracting officer or Commonwealth Inspector General in writing.
- 14. Contractor, by submission of its bid or proposal and/or execution of this contract and by the submission of any bills, invoices or requests for payment pursuant to the contract, certifies and represents that it has not violated any of these contractor integrity provisions in connection with the submission of the bid or proposal, during any contract negotiations or during the term of the contract.

- 15. Contractor shall cooperate with the Office of Inspector General in its investigation of any alleged Commonwealth employee breach of ethical standards and any alleged Contractor non-compliance with these provisions. Contractor agrees to make identified Contractor employees available for interviews at reasonable times and places. Contractor, upon the inquiry or request of the Office of Inspector General, shall provide, or if appropriate, make promptly available for inspection or copying, any information of any type or form deemed relevant by the Inspector General to Contractor's integrity and compliance with these provisions. Such information may include, but shall not be limited to, Contractor's business or financial records, documents or files of any type or form that refers to or concern this contract.
- 16. For violation of any of these Contractor Integrity Provisions, the Commonwealth may terminate this and any other contract with Contractor, claim liquidated damages in an amount equal to the value of anything received in breach of these provisions, claim damages for all additional costs and expenses incurred in obtaining another contractor to complete performance under this contract, and debar and suspend Contractor from doing business with the Commonwealth. These rights and remedies are cumulative, and the use or non-use of any one shall not preclude the use of all or any other. These rights and remedies are in addition to those the Commonwealth may have under law, statute, regulation, or otherwise.
- **17.** For purposes of these Contractor Integrity Provisions, the following terms shall have the meanings found in this Paragraph 17.
 - **a.** "Confidential information" means information that a) is not already in the public domain; b) is not available to the public upon request; c) is not or does not become generally known to Contractor from a third party without an obligation to maintain its confidentiality; d) has not become generally known to the public through a act or omission of Contractor; or e) has not been independently developed by Contractor without the use of confidential information of the Commonwealth.
 - **b.** "Consent" means written permission signed by a duly authorized officer or employee of the Commonwealth, provided that where the material facts have been disclosed, in writing, by pre-qualification, bid, proposal, or contractual terms, the Commonwealth shall be deemed to have consented by virtue of execution of this contract.
 - **c.** "Contractor" means the individual or entity that has entered into this contract with the Commonwealth, including those directors, officers, partners, managers, and owners having more than a five percent interest in Contractor.
 - **d.** "Financial interest" means:
 - (1) Ownership of more than a five percent interest in any business; or
 - (2) Holding a position as an officer, director, trustee, partner, employee, or holding any position of management.
 - **e.** "Gratuity" means tendering, giving or providing anything of more than nominal monetary value including, but not limited to, cash, travel, entertainment, gifts, meals, lodging, loans, subscriptions, advances, deposits of money, services, employment, or contracts of any kind. The exceptions set forth in the *Governor's Code of Conduct, Executive Order 1980-18*, the *4 Pa. Code §7.153(b)*, shall apply.
 - **f.** "Immediate family" means a spouse and any unemancipated child.

- **g.** "Non-bid basis" means a contract awarded or executed by the Commonwealth with Contractor without seeking bids or proposals from any other potential bidder or offeror.
- **h.** "Political contribution" means any payment, gift, subscription, assessment, contract, payment for services, dues, loan, forbearance, advance or deposit of money or any valuable thing, to a candidate for public office or to a political committee, including but not limited to a political action committee, made for the purpose of influencing any election in the Commonwealth of Pennsylvania or for paying debts incurred by or for a candidate or committee before or after any election.

V.35 CONTRACT-029.1 Contractor Responsibility Provisions (Nov 2010)

For the purpose of these provisions, the term contractor is defined as any person, including, but not limited to, a bidder, offeror, loan recipient, grantee or lessor, who has furnished or performed or seeks to furnish or perform, goods, supplies, services, leased space, construction or other activity, under a contract, grant, lease, purchase order or reimbursement agreement with the Commonwealth of Pennsylvania (Commonwealth). The term contractor includes a permittee, licensee, or any agency, political subdivision, instrumentality, public authority, or other public entity in the Commonwealth.

- 1. The Contractor certifies, in writing, for itself and its subcontractors required to be disclosed or approved by the Commonwealth, that as of the date of its execution of this Bid/Contract, that neither the Contractor, nor any such subcontractors, are under suspension or debarment by the Commonwealth or any governmental entity, instrumentality, or authority and, if the Contractor cannot so certify, then it agrees to submit, along with its Bid/Contract, a written explanation of why such certification cannot be made.
- 2. The Contractor also certifies, in writing, that as of the date of its execution of this Bid/Contract it has no tax liabilities or other Commonwealth obligations, or has filed a timely administrative or judicial appeal if such liabilities or obligations exist, or is subject to a duly approved deferred payment plan if such liabilities exist.
- 3. The Contractor's obligations pursuant to these provisions are ongoing from and after the effective date of the Contract through the termination date thereof. Accordingly, the Contractor shall have an obligation to inform the Commonwealth if, at any time during the term of the Contract, it becomes delinquent in the payment of taxes, or other Commonwealth obligations, or if it or, to the best knowledge of the Contractor, any of its subcontractors are suspended or debarred by the Commonwealth, the federal government, or any other state or governmental entity. Such notification shall be made within 15 days of the date of suspension or debarment.
- **4.** The failure of the Contractor to notify the Commonwealth of its suspension or debarment by the Commonwealth, any other state, or the federal government shall constitute an event of default of the Contract with the Commonwealth.
- 5. The Contractor agrees to reimburse the Commonwealth for the reasonable costs of investigation incurred by the Office of State Inspector General for investigations of the Contractor's compliance with the terms of this or any other agreement between the Contractor and the Commonwealth that results in the suspension or debarment of the contractor. Such costs shall include, but shall not be limited to, salaries of investigators, including overtime; travel and lodging expenses; and expert witness and documentary fees. The Contractor shall not be responsible for investigative costs for investigations that do not result in the Contractor's suspension or debarment.
- **6.** The Contractor may obtain a current list of suspended and debarred Commonwealth contractors by either searching the Internet at **http://www.dgs.state.pa.us/** or contacting the:

Department of General Services Office of Chief Counsel 603 North Office Building Harrisburg, PA 17125 Telephone No: (717) 783-6472

FAX No: (717) 787-9138

V.36 CONTRACT-030.1 Americans with Disabilities Act (Oct 2006)

- a. Pursuant to federal regulations promulgated under the authority of The Americans With Disabilities Act, 28 C.F.R. Section 35.101 et seq., the Contractor understands and agrees that it shall not cause any individual with a disability to be excluded from participation in this Contract or from activities provided for under this Contract on the basis of the disability. As a condition of accepting this contract, the Contractor agrees to comply with the "General Prohibitions Against Discrimination," 28 C.F.R. Section 35.130, and all other regulations promulgated under Title II of The Americans With Disabilities Act which are applicable to all benefits, services, programs, and activities provided by the Commonwealth of Pennsylvania through contracts with outside contractors.
- b. The Contractor shall be responsible for and agrees to indemnify and hold harmless the Commonwealth of Pennsylvania from all losses, damages, expenses, claims, demands, suits, and actions brought by any party against the Commonwealth of Pennsylvania as a result of the Contractor's failure to comply with the provisions of Subparagraph a. above.

V.37 CONTRACT-032.1 Covenant Against Contingent Fees (Oct 2006)

The Contractor warrants that no person or selling agency has been employed or retained to solicit or secure the Contract upon an agreement or understanding for a commission, percentage, brokerage, or contingent fee, except bona fide employees or bona fide established commercial or selling agencies maintained by the Contractor for the purpose of securing business. For breach or violation of this warranty, the Commonwealth shall have the right to terminate the Contract without liability or in its discretion to deduct from the Contract price or consideration, or otherwise recover the full amount of such commission, percentage, brokerage, or contingent fee.

V.38 CONTRACT-033.1 Applicable Law (Oct 2006)

This Contract shall be governed by and interpreted and enforced in accordance with the laws of the Commonwealth of Pennsylvania (without regard to any conflict of laws provisions) and the decisions of the Pennsylvania courts. The Contractor consents to the jurisdiction of any court of the Commonwealth of Pennsylvania and any federal courts in Pennsylvania, waiving any claim or defense that such forum is not convenient or proper. The Contractor agrees that any such court shall have in personam jurisdiction over it, and consents to service of process in any manner authorized by Pennsylvania law.

V.39 CONTRACT- 034.1b Integration (Nov 30 2006)

This Contract, including the Invitation for Bids, the Contractor's bid, all referenced documents, and any Purchase Order constitutes the entire agreement between the parties. No agent, representative, employee or officer of either the Commonwealth or the Contractor has authority to make, or has made, any statement, agreement or representation, oral or written, in connection with the Contract, which in any way can be deemed to modify, add to or detract from, or otherwise change or alter its terms and conditions. No negotiations between the parties, nor any custom or usage, shall be permitted to modify or contradict any of the terms and conditions of the Contract. No modifications, alterations, changes, or waiver to the Contract or any of its terms shall be valid or binding unless accomplished by a written amendment signed by both parties.

V.40 CONTRACT-034.2b Order of Precedence - IFB (Dec 6 2006)

In the event there is a conflict among the documents comprising this Contract, the Commonwealth and the Contractor agree on the following order of precedence: the Contract; the IFB; and the Contractor's Bid in Response to the IFB.

V.41 CONTRACT-034.3 Controlling Terms and Conditions (Aug 2011)

The terms and conditions of this Contract shall be the exclusive terms of agreement between the Contractor and the Commonwealth. All quotations requested and received from the Contractor are for obtaining firm pricing only. Other terms and conditions or additional terms and conditions included or referenced in the Contractor's quotations, invoices, business forms, or other documentation shall not become part of the parties' agreement and shall be disregarded by the parties, unenforceable by the Contractor and not binding on the Commonwealth.

V.42 CONTRACT-035.1a Changes (Oct 2006)

The Commonwealth reserves the right to make changes at any time during the term of the Contract or any renewals or extensions thereof: 1) to increase or decrease the quantities resulting from variations between any estimated quantities in the Contract and actual quantities; 2) to make changes to the services within the scope of the Contract; 3) to notify the Contractor that the Commonwealth is exercising any Contract renewal or extension option; or 4) to modify the time of performance that does not alter the scope of the Contract to extend the completion date beyond the Expiration Date of the Contract or any renewals or extensions thereof. Any such change shall be made by the Contracting Officer by notifying the Contractor in writing. The change shall be effective as of the date of the change, unless the notification of change specifies a later effective date. Such increases, decreases, changes, or modifications will not invalidate the Contract, nor, if performance security is being furnished in conjunction with the Contract, release the security obligation. The Contractor agrees to provide the service in accordance with the change order. Any dispute by the Contractor in regard to the performance required by any notification of change shall be handled through Contract Controversies Provision.

V.43 CONTRACT-036.1 Background Checks (Feb 2008)

a. The Contractor must, at its expense, arrange for a background check for each of its employees, as well as the employees of any of its subcontractors, who will have access to Commonwealth facilities, either through on-site access or through remote access. Background checks are to be conducted via the Request for Criminal Record Check form and procedure found at http://www.psp.state.pa.us/psp/lib/psp/sp4-164.pdf . The background check must be conducted prior to initial access and on an annual basis thereafter.

b. Before the Commonwealth will permit access to the Contractor, the Contractor must provide written confirmation that the background checks have been conducted. If, at any time, it is discovered that a Contractor employee has a criminal record that includes a felony or misdemeanor involving terroristic behavior, violence, use of a lethal weapon, or breach of trust/fiduciary responsibility or which raises concerns about building, system or personal security or is otherwise job-related, the Contractor shall not assign that employee to any Commonwealth facilities, shall remove any access privileges already given to the employee and shall not permit that employee remote access unless the Commonwealth consents to the access, in writing, prior to the access. The Commonwealth may withhold its consent in its sole discretion. Failure of the Contractor to comply with the terms of this Section on more than one occasion or Contractor's failure to appropriately address any single failure to the satisfaction of the Commonwealth may result in the Contractor being deemed in default of its Contract.

- c. The Commonwealth specifically reserves the right of the Commonwealth to conduct background checks over and above that described herein.
- d. Access to certain Capitol Complex buildings and other state office buildings is controlled by means of card readers and secured visitors' entrances. Commonwealth contracted personnel who have regular and routine business in Commonwealth worksites may be issued a photo identification or access badge subject to the requirements of the contracting agency and DGS set forth in Enclosure 3 of Commonwealth Management Directive 625.10 Amended (January 30, 2008) Card Reader and Emergency Response Access to Certain Capitol Complex Buildings and Other State Office Buildings The requirements, policy and procedures include a processing fee payable by the Contractor for contracted personnel photo identification or access badges.

V.44 CONTRACT-037.1a Confidentiality (February 2012)

- a. The Contractor agrees to guard the confidentiality of the Commonwealth's confidential information with the same diligence with which it guards its own proprietary information. If the Contractor needs to disclose all or part of project materials to third parties to assist in the work or service performed for the Commonwealth, it may do so only if such third parties sign agreements containing substantially the same provisions as contained in this Section. The Commonwealth agrees to protect the confidentiality of Contractor's confidential information. In order for information to be deemed to be confidential, the party claiming confidentiality must designate the information as "confidential" in such a way as to give notice to the other party. The parties agree that such confidential information shall not be copied, in whole or in part, except when essential for authorized use under this Contract. Each copy of such confidential information shall be marked by the party making the copy with all confidentiality notices appearing in the original. Upon termination or cancellation of this Contract or any license granted hereunder, the receiving party will return to the disclosing party all copies of the confidential information in the receiving party's possession, other than one copy, which may be maintained for archival purposes only. Both parties agree that a material breach of these requirements may, after failure to cure within the time frame specified in this Contract, and at the discretion of the non-breaching party, result in termination for default.
- b. The obligations stated in this Section do not apply to information:
 - (1) already known to the recipient at the time of disclosure other than through the contractual relationship;
 - (2) independently generated by the recipient and not derived from the information supplied by the disclosing party;
 - (3) known or available to the public, except where such knowledge or availability is the result of unauthorized disclosure by the recipient of the proprietary information;
 - (4) disclosed to the recipient without a similar restriction by a third party who has the right to make such disclosure; or
 - (5) required to be disclosed by the recipient by law, regulation, court order, or other legal process.
- c. There shall be no restriction with respect to the use or disclosure of any ideas, concepts, know-how, or data processing techniques developed alone or jointly with the Commonwealth in connection with services provided to the Commonwealth under this Contract.

V.45 CONTRACT-045.1 Insurance - General (Dec 12 2006)

The Contractor is required to have in place during the term of the Contract and any renewals or extensions thereof, the following types of insurance, issued by companies acceptable to the Commonwealth and authorized to conduct such business under the laws of the Commonwealth of Pennsylvania:

- **A.** Worker's Compensation Insurance for all of the Contractor's employees and those of any subcontractor, engaged in work at the site of the project as required by law.
- **B.** Public Liability and Property Damage Insurance to protect the Commonwealth, the Contractor, and any and all subcontractors from claims for damages for personal injury (including bodily injury), sickness or disease, accidental death and damage to property including the loss of use resulting from any property damage, which may arise from the activities performed under the Contract or the failure to perform under the Contract, whether such performance or non-performance be by the Contractor, by any subcontractor, or by anyone directly or indirectly employed by either. The minimum amounts of coverage shall be \$250,000 per person and \$1,000,000 per occurrence for bodily injury, including death, and \$250,000 per person and \$1,000,000 per occurrence for property damage. Such policies shall be occurrence rather than claims-made policies and shall not contain any endorsements or any other form designated to limit and restrict any action by the Commonwealth, as an additional insured, against the insurance coverage in regard to work performed for the Commonwealth.

Prior to commencement of the work under the Contract and at each insurance renewal date during the term of the Contract, the Contractor shall provide the Commonwealth with current certificates of insurance. These certificates or policies shall name the Commonwealth as an additional insured and shall contain a provision that the coverage's afforded under the policies will not be cancelled or changed until at least thirty (30) days written notice has been given to the Commonwealth.

The Commonwealth shall be under no obligation to obtain such certificates from the Contractor(s). Failure by the Commonwealth to obtain the certificates shall not be deemed a waiver of the Contractor's obligation to obtain and furnish certificates. The Commonwealth shall have the right to inspect the original insurance policies.

V.46 CONTRACT-051.1 Notice (Dec 2006)

Any written notice to any party under this Contract shall be deemed sufficient if delivered personally, or by facsimile, telecopy, electronic or digital transmission (provided such delivery is confirmed), or by a recognized overnight courier service (e.g., DHL, Federal Express, etc.) with confirmed receipt, or by certified or registered United States mail, postage prepaid, return receipt requested, and sent to following:

- a. If to the Contractor: the Contractor's address as recorded in the Commonwealth's Supplier Registration system.
- b. If to the Commonwealth: the address of the Issuing Office as set forth on the Contract.

V.47 CONTRACT-052.1 Right to Know Law (Feb 2010)

a. The Pennsylvania Right-to-Know Law, 65 P.S. §§ 67.101-3104, ("RTKL") applies to this Contract. For the purpose of these provisions, the term "the Commonwealth" shall refer to the contracting Commonwealth agency.

b. If the Commonwealth needs the Contractor's assistance in any matter arising out of the RTKL related to this Contract, it shall notify the Contractor using the legal contact information provided in this Contract. The Contractor, at any time, may designate a different contact for such purpose upon reasonable prior written notice to the Commonwealth.

- c. Upon written notification from the Commonwealth that it requires the Contractor's assistance in responding to a request under the RTKL for information related to this Contract that may be in the Contractor's possession, constituting, or alleged to constitute, a public record in accordance with the RTKL ("Requested Information"), the Contractor shall:
 - 1. Provide the Commonwealth, within ten (10) calendar days after receipt of written notification, access to, and copies of, any document or information in the Contractor's possession arising out of this Contract that the Commonwealth reasonably believes is Requested Information and may be a public record under the RTKL; and
 - 2. Provide such other assistance as the Commonwealth may reasonably request, in order to comply with the RTKL with respect to this Contract.
- d. If the Contractor considers the Requested Information to include a request for a Trade Secret or Confidential Proprietary Information, as those terms are defined by the RTKL, or other information that the Contractor considers exempt from production under the RTKL, the Contractor must notify the Commonwealth and provide, within seven (7) calendar days of receiving the written notification, a written statement signed by a representative of the Contractor explaining why the requested material is exempt from public disclosure under the RTKL.
- e. The Commonwealth will rely upon the written statement from the Contractor in denying a RTKL request for the Requested Information unless the Commonwealth determines that the Requested Information is clearly not protected from disclosure under the RTKL. Should the Commonwealth determine that the Requested Information is clearly not exempt from disclosure, the Contractor shall provide the Requested Information within five (5) business days of receipt of written notification of the Commonwealth's determination.
- f. If the Contractor fails to provide the Requested Information within the time period required by these provisions, the Contractor shall indemnify and hold the Commonwealth harmless for any damages, penalties, costs, detriment or harm that the Commonwealth may incur as a result of the Contractor's failure, including any statutory damages assessed against the Commonwealth.
- g. The Commonwealth will reimburse the Contractor for any costs associated with complying with these provisions only to the extent allowed under the fee schedule established by the Office of Open Records or as otherwise provided by the RTKL if the fee schedule is inapplicable.
- h. The Contractor may file a legal challenge to any Commonwealth decision to release a record to the public with the Office of Open Records, or in the Pennsylvania Courts, however, the Contractor shall indemnify the Commonwealth for any legal expenses incurred by the Commonwealth as a result of such a challenge and shall hold the Commonwealth harmless for any damages, penalties, costs, detriment or harm that the Commonwealth may incur as a result of the Contractor's failure, including any statutory damages assessed against the Commonwealth, regardless of the outcome of such legal challenge. As between the parties, the Contractor agrees to waive all rights or remedies that may be available to it as a result of the Commonwealth's disclosure of Requested Information pursuant to the RTKL.
- i. The Contractor's duties relating to the RTKL are continuing duties that survive the expiration of this Contract and shall continue as long as the Contractor has Requested Information in its possession.

RECORDS AND DOCUMENT RECOVERY SERVICES STATEMENT OF WORK IFB Number 6100025826

CONTRACT OVERVIEW: This Contract for Records and Document Recovery Services, (identified here and in the other documents as the "Contract") will cover the requirements to provide immediate recovery and/or restoration for physical media including hardcopy records and documents, where if damaged or destroyed, would disrupt agency operations and information flow, cause considerable inconvenience and require replacement or re-creation. The services under this contract will be required to be performed during and after an emergency of any disaster, from the smallest water leak to a major catastrophe, such as a fire or flood. This contract will cover non-electronic records and documents, which are essential to the critical business functions of the Commonwealth or are considered vital records or irreplaceable historical documents.

METHOD OF AWARD: This will be a multiple award Contract. The Commonwealth will award a Contract to all responsible and responsive Bidders who meet the eligibility requirements.

ELIGIBILITY REQUIREMENTS: To be eligible for this Contract, the Contractor shall:

- **A.** Provide a brief business history outlining the length of time in business, number of location(s)/facility(s), experience, services provided, available training and qualifications and expertise to provide professional advice and packing, freezing and drying services to Commonwealth agencies affected by a disaster.
- **B.** Have a verifiable, minimum of five (5) years of experience in providing these types of services to Government and/or private industry customers.
- **C.** Provide a list of all Service Project Managers, Service Technicians and their level of experience and qualifications.
- **D.** Provide a legible copy of a minimum of five (5) most current references verifying their experience in providing these types of services to Government and/or private industry customers.
- E. Provide a toll-free customer service telephone number. This service must be available 24 hours, seven days a week. (The Commonwealth shall be able to be in contact with a representative at any given time)
- **F.** Have the systematic procedures and policies in place for the removal of materials from a disaster-struck Commonwealth agency to ensure that all the materials have been identified, inventoried and kept in as much order as possible given the situation in the agency.
- **G.** Have the capability to acquire additional freezer space for large quantities of materials if the quantity to be dried is too large for the current drying capacity of the contractor due either to the current available space or the amount of material to be dried.
- **H.** When appropriate, have the capability and/or arrangements for cleaning the materials after they have been dried.
- I. Be capable of returning the materials to the affected Commonwealth agency in order, in appropriate boxes, etc., and in as usable a form as possible, considering the degree of the disaster.

<u>DISASTER PLANNING</u>: Accessibility to vital records is important for an agency to provide continuous service to the public. An often overlooked, yet critical, part of an effective records management program is the creation of a disaster preparedness and recovery plan. Disaster

preparedness is a state of readiness to prevent or mitigate the destruction of records that may result from a calamity. Disaster Planning is the process whereby an agency achieves and maintains preparedness for disasters.

A majority of Commonwealth agencies under the Governor's jurisdiction have developed an agency-specific disaster plan according to the guidelines in the Disaster Planning Section of the <u>State Records Management Manual M210.7</u>, Chapter 14, which assists all Commonwealth agencies in the preparation of a disaster preparedness and recovery plan. It should be known that not all agencies or potential users of this contract will have developed a Disaster Preparedness Plan.

RESPONSE AND RECOVERY: The response and recovery phase is the period in which efforts are made to salvage and reconstruct the state agency's damaged information resources in order to restore normal operations. A majority of Commonwealth agencies under the Governor's jurisdiction have in place a Disaster Team. It should be known that not all agencies or potential users of this contract will have developed a Disaster Team.

<u>DRYING METHODS</u>: To ensure the usability of records recovered from a disaster area, proper care must be taken to ensure that the documents are handled and dried appropriately. Included below are examples of Commonwealth acceptable methods of drying.

- Air Drying
- Freeze Drying
- Vacuum Thermal Drying
- Vacuum Freeze Drying
- Dehumidification

SALVAGING WET MATERIALS: When deciding how to dry wet materials, the type of media is critical in determining the proper salvage methods. Listed below are typical types of Commonwealth media found within state agencies.

- Paper (manuscripts, single sheets)
- Coated Papers
- Maps, Plan and Oversize Manuscripts
- Microforms
- Photographic Materials
- Motion Pictures
- Magnetic media such as tapes (audio, video, computer) and disks.

REQUIRED SERVICES: Time is critical in a disaster. The faster the Contractor can respond and perform an initial inspection, the more likely that the facility can be stabilized and the disaster recovery of records and documents started. The Contractor must be able to:

- **A.** Respond to a disaster scene within a maximum of 24 hours of being called by a Commonwealth agency or designated preservation site.
- **B.** Perform an initial assessment of the damage at <u>no cost</u>.
- **C.** Provide the most efficient options for the salvage, recovery and rehabilitation of records and documents, whether this means packing, freezing and vacuum-freeze drying; packing, freezing and drying at another facility; drying the materials on-site; or other options.

- **D.** Provide freezer and/or drying trucks, packing supplies and personnel to assist Commonwealth agencies that have been affected by a disaster that is beyond their capability of handling.
- **E.** Freeze and completely dry records and documents affected by a disaster and return those items to the agency in usable form when completed.
- **F.** During the drying process, constantly monitor and manipulate the documents to ensure that they are completely dried and not stuck together.
- **G.** Under the direction of the Commonwealth agency staff or designated preservation professional, provide advice to affected agencies on their damaged documents.

GEOGRAPHIC COVERAGE: Supplier must complete Exhibit A – Geographic Coverage Spreadsheet marking with an X the area(s) listed by county that their company can service. Supplier can either mark X for statewide coverage or they can mark an X for individual county coverage.

PRICE LIST: Suppliers must include with their bid, on company letterhead, their most recent and "basic" Price List for all standard Records and Document Recovery/Restoration Services that may be offered. Any additional services, which are not covered on the Price List, are required to be quoted on a case-by-case basis. Suppliers must also include on the price list, normal and rapid response times (expressed in hours) after receipt of the agency's initial service request. Suppliers may also note any special discounts on their price list. Prices are not a factor in receiving an award for this Contract. Pricing must, however, apply to all agencies of the Commonwealth and shall definitely be a factor in the agency's selection of a Records and Document Recovery Supplier.

Any other Contractor terms and conditions that may appear on the Contractor's price list, including but not limited to, FOB shipping point; prices subject to change without notice will not be part of this Contract and will have no force or effect on this Contract or Purchase Orders issued by Commonwealth agencies.

<u>ORDERING PROCEDURES</u>: Commonwealth agencies will contact a Contractor from the list of qualified suppliers to request service(s). This initial contact will serve as "Notice to Proceed". All known information of the situation will be provided to the Contractor.

Contractor will begin service to the affected agency within 12 hours or less after the initial visit to the affected site. Contractor shall submit a quote within **2 days** after the Contractor has responded to the scene and performed the initial assessment/project start-up. Upon the agency's receipt of a quote from the Contractor, a purchase order will follow within **10 business days**.

BILLING REQUIREMENTS: It is anticipated that some disasters may take several months to recover and restore documents, etc.; therefore, as services under the scope of this Contract are rendered, the Contractor may submit Invoices to the Comptroller, as well as a Confirmation of Services Form (Exhibit B of this Invitation for Bid) to the affected agency. Contractors are also permitted to bill on a monthly basis and may start to submit the Invoice and Confirmation of Services Form after the first 30 days of the project. Contractors may not publish any alternate pricing or additional terms and conditions on their Invoice or Confirmation of Services.

TRAVEL, **LODGING AND SUBSISTENCE**: The Contractor shall be compensated for travel, lodging and subsistence expenses for the Contractor's employees assigned to the project in accordance with the Commonwealth Management Directive 230.10. Such

compensation will only pertain to restoration services performed "on-site" at the using agency site.

<u>DOMESTIC WORKFORCE UTILIZATION CERTIFICATION</u>: To the extent that any services could be performed outside of the geographical boundaries of the United States, the Supplier will be required to certify that those services will be performed exclusively within the geographical boundaries of the United States or specify the percentage of the direct labor that will be performed outside of the United States. Suppliers must complete and return the Domestic Workforce Utilization Certification Form, which is attached to and made part of this IFB. The completed and signed Domestic Workforce Utilization Certification Form should be submitted with the bid response.

<u>ADDITION OF NEW CONTRACTORS</u>: New Contractors may be added at the discretion of the Department of General Services (DGS).

<u>DOCUMENT(S) TO BE RETURNED</u>: The following document(s) must be returned with your bid response:

- **A.** Exhibit A Geographic Coverage,
- **B.** Price List on company letterhead,
- C. Domestic Workforce Utilization Form,
- **D.** A company summary document, which includes:
 - 1) Brief business history outlining the length of time in business, number of location(s)/facility(s), 24-hour customer service telephone number, experience, services provided, available training and qualifications and expertise to provide professional advice and packing, freezing and drying services,
 - 2) References (provide the name of the reference, contact person, street address and telephone number) as required,
 - 2) List of all Service Project Managers, Service Technicians and their level of experience and qualifications including legible copies of all supporting documentation, if any.
- **E.** Legible, verifiable documentation proving five (5) years of experience in the records and document recovery services industry.

Suppliers who fail to provide such documents with their bid response may result in bid rejection.

You may refer to the SRM Bidding Reference Guide on the Supplier Portal at www.pasupplierportal.state.pa.us for further details on attaching documents to your bid and bidding instruction.

INQUIRIES: Direct all questions concerning this Contract to the Contracting Officer, Wanda Bowers at 717-346-3840 or wbowers@pa.gov.



2013 RATE SCHEDULE

Unit	List Price
Minimum Project Fee (excludes shipping)	\$745.00/ea
Consulting	\$165.00/hr
Document Specialist	\$130.00/hr
Project Manager	\$80.00/hr
Project Supervisor	\$65.00/hr
Inventory Technician	\$45.00/hr
Handling & Packaging Laborer	\$35.00/hr
Document Processing Laborer	\$35.00/hr
Travel/Mobilization	\$28.00/hr
Pack-Out Boxes	\$3.15/ea
Pack-Out Kit	\$14.75/ea
Return Boxes 1.2 Cubic Feet	\$5.41/ea
Wood Pallets	\$18.65/ea
Stabilization Freezer Storage	\$6.72/cf/mo
Document Drying 1 - 250 cf	\$72.00/cf
Document Drying 251 - 1000 cf	\$63.00/cf
Document Drying 1001+ cf	\$54.00/cf
Disinfectant Fogging	\$7.44/cf
Odor Neutralization	\$5.31/cf
Cleaning Class I	\$65.88/cf
Cleaning Class II	\$98.73/cf
Cleaning Class III	\$131.75/cf
Cleaning Class IV	\$164.65/cf
Cleaning Class V	\$247.05/cf
Cleaning Class VI	\$329.32/cf
Blueprint Drying	\$2.60/ea
Linen & Mylar Drying	\$4.90/ea
Blueprint, Linen & Mylar Cleaning Class I	\$2.13/ea
Blueprint, Linen & Mylar Cleaning Class II	\$2.65/ea
Blueprint, Linen & Mylar Cleaning Class III	\$3.75/ea
Blueprint, Linen & Mylar Cleaning Class IV	\$5.26/ea
Blueprint, Linen & Mylar Cleaning Class V	\$5.83/ea
Blueprint, Linen & Mylar Cleaning Class VI	\$6.35/ea
Rare Book Drying	\$21.24/ea



Rare Book Cleaning	\$159.35/ea	
X-Ray Processing I – 1000	\$3.21/film	
X-Ray Processing 1001 – 5000	\$2.74/film	
X Ray Processing 5001+	\$2.15/film	
Photograph Processing	\$2.20/ea	
Photograph Negative Processing	\$0.52/ea	
Microfiche Strip Processing	\$0.52/ea	
Microfiche Sheet Processing	\$2.22/ea	
Microfilm Roll Processing	\$52.10/ea	
CD & DVD Processing	\$2.23/ea	
Record Album Processing	\$3.45/ea	
Photocopying (Letter)	\$0.29/copy	
Photocopying (Legal)	\$0.36/copy	
Photocopying (Color)	\$0.93/copy	
Blueprint/Map/Oversized Reproduction	\$0.84/sf	
Document Destruction – Dry Shredding	\$12.51/cf	
Document Destruction – Wet Shredding	\$48.00/cf	
Gamma Irradiation Flat Rate (includes 1 – 100 cubic feet)	\$1,500.00	
Gamma Irradiation Additional	\$15.00/cf	

Additional Charges:
Company Owned/Rented Vehicle
Company Owned/Rented Van
Company Owned/Rented Truck or Trailer
Additional Equipment & Supplies
Overtime Labor (8+ Hours Daily/Saturdays):
Premium Labor (Sundays): \$0.78/mi \$1.85/mi \$2.75/mi

Standard or Cost + 10% and 10%

Regular + 50% Regular + 100%

GEOGRAPHIC COVERAGE PA DEPARTMENT OF GENERAL STATEWIDE SERVICE CONT RECORD & DOCUMENT RECOVER

THIS EXHIBIT SHALL BE RETURNED WITH THE BID. FAILURE TO RETURN IT

Contractor Name: Polygon US Corporation	Contact Person: Rob Schmidt	
Contractor Address: 7377 William Ave., Suite 100	E-mail Address: Rob.schmidt@]	
Allentown, PA. 18106		
	Phone Number: #484-553-0188	
Federal Identification or SSN:	Vendor Number 373413	

A. (GEOGRAPHIC	COVERAGE - A	Answer the f	following	questions.
------	------------	--------------	--------------	-----------	------------

1. Does your	company provide s	ervice coverage STATEWIDE?	Place an X next to the
YES	X	NO	

2. If you answered "NO" for Question 1, place an X in the box next to each COUNTY provide service for the entire county.

	County	
County Name	Code	Х
Adams	1	
Allegheny	2	
Armstrong	3	
Beaver	4	
Bedford	5	
Berks	6	
Blair	7	
Bradford	8	
Bucks	9	
Butler	10	
Cambria	11	

County Name	County Code	x
Elk	24	
Erie	25	
Fayette	26	
Forest	27	
Franklin	28	
Fulton	29	
Greene	30	
Hunting don	31	
Indiana	32	
Jefferso n	33	
Juniata	34	

Cameron	12	Lackav anna	35	
Carbon	13	Lanca: er	36	
Centre	14	Lawre ce	n 37	
Chester	15	Leban n	38	
Clarion	16	Lehigh	39	
Clearfield	17	Luzerr	ne 40	
Clinton	18	Lycom ng	i 41	
Columbia	19	McKea	n 42	
Crawford	20	Merce	r 43	
Cumberland	21	Mifflin	44	
Dauphin	22	Monro	e 45	
Delaware	23			

GE SERVICES FRACT RY SERVICES

MAY RESULT IN REJECTION OF THE BID.

oolygongroup.com	
	Fax Number

e correct answer. If you answered "YES", it is guaranteed

in which your company provides service. You must be able to

	County	.,
County Name	Code	Х
Montgomery	46	
Montour	47	
Northampton	48	
Northumberland	49	
Perry	50	
Philadelphia	51	
Pike	52	
Potter	53	
Schuylkill	54	
Snyder	55	
Somerset	56	

Sullivan	57	
Susquehanna	58	
Tioga	59	
Union	60	
Venango	61	
Warren	62	
Washington	63	
Wayne	64	
Westmoreland	65	
Wyoming	66	
York	67	

Relevant Past Performance Case #1 PennDot

Contract # 4300322258

Purchase Order for recovery of contaminated records 2 week performance time period Contract amount \$38,175.10

PennDot

7000 Geerdes Blvd. King of Prussia, PA 19406 Larry McCool Contact# 610-205-6740

Email: lmccool@pa.gov

This project involved the recovery of critical records that were damaged by water, mold and rodent feces. When the inspection occurred it was critical to understand the labor process involved to clean and decontaminate the records and factor those working hours into the project estimate. Rapid Refile, a Polygon Company provided vacuum freeze drying services to reduce the moisture level in the documents to their normal moisture equivalent. Once the drying process was completed the paper records were sent out to be Gamma Irradiated to address the feces and mold. Once the records were safe to handle we cleaned the paper records utilizing HEPA filtered vacuums in addition to sponges according to industry standards.

The project had a time sensitive "right to know" deadline of three weeks from the date of receiving the documents. The project was completed in less than 2 weeks and returned to the customer.

Their were no issues that occurred over the course of the project and the materials were successfully returned to PennDot.

Relevant Past Performance Case #2 Columbia University

Contract # CUL-8/11 Contract for Mold Decontamination of Rare Material 6 week performance time period Contract amount \$1,959.44

Columbia University Libraries

101 Butler Library, 535 W. 114th Street, New York, NY 10027 Alexis Hagadorn Contact# 212-854-9825

Email: ah333@columbia.edu

Rapid Refile, a Polygon Company has performed over ten projects for Columbia University Libraries ranging in complexity and size, and for a total value in the tens of thousands of dollars. The Ella Winters project involved mold decontamination of rare material typically handled by Columbia's in-house preservation department. Due to a combination of their lab's backlog and superior past performance by Rapid Refile, a Polygon Company our firm was awarded the contract and entrusted by key preservation personnel with the specialty work.

This project closely matches the level of cleaning required and the standards expected in the NARA task order. Trained technicians utilized preservation tools (e.g. bamboo brushes, variable speed HEPA vacuums, archival spatulas, etc.) to carefully separate and clean acidified and decaying historical documents. The techniques used achieved acceptance levels without sterilization (e.g. gamma irradiation) comparable to the NARA task order and the collection was successfully accepted into the CUL collection.

The Ella Winters project was completed on time and with no interruption during the midst of major recovery efforts associated with Hurricane Irene and Tropical Storm Lee.

Relevant Past Performance Case #3 Housing and Urban Development

Department of Housing & Urban Development ~ D.C.

Contract#: 12-HUD-0088

Dates of Service: May 3 – May 29, 2012 (On Schedule)

Contact: Richard Thomas ~ 202-402-4229~ richard.thomas@usfacilities.com

Rapid Refile, a Polygon Company provided removal, drying, cleaning, decontamination, sanitization and other necessary recovery services for records (including all documents held within), folders, containers, or boxes in a practical, efficient and safe manner for the rehabilitation of these items, while minimizing damage to the records. Possible actions include, but are not limited to freezing, vacuum freeze-drying, desiccant or air-drying, surface cleaning, sanitization, dehumidification, or other necessary actions approved by HUD for the recovery of the records and/or its information.

Rapid Refile, a Polygon Company provided systematic procedures for tracking and handling records while in their possession to ensure that all records/holdings were safely handled, maintained in order as the records/holdings were found upon receipt and locatable at any time through the cleaning processes. Rapid Refile will retain with the original record shipments all documentation sent with the records. When necessary, we will transfer box exterior labeling and/or identifying information from original containers/boxes to new, replacement containers provided by us.

We will remove boxes of contaminated records, bag them according to requirements specified in the Performance Work Statement, and shall provide cleaning of shelves in the direct area where the removed boxes were stored.

During cleaning/recovery work at Polygon's facility in Allentown, PA, the firm will provide constant monitoring of its facility's environmental conditions. Specific temperatures may be specified at the time of shipment depending upon the materials and conditions involved. We will provide documentation of all treatment/cleaning work undertaken to report to the Customer any treatments utilized in the cleaning of each box of records.

Relevant Past Performance Case #4 Biomat USA

Rapid Refile, a Polygon Company.

Contract # BIO02F-4/09 Contract for Mold Decontamination of Medical Records 12 week performance period Contract amount \$11,430.73

BioMat USA

Biomat USA Kathy Willison 2120 SW 6th Street Topeka, KS 66606 topeka.biomatusa@grifols.com

BioMat USA, the nation's largest repository firm for blood plasma donations, discovered archived records affected by water and extensive mold damage. The damage origin and timeframe were unknown, but given the extent of deterioration and adhesion, estimates place damage at greater than 5 years old. Retention policies for such documents are 40+ years. BioMat USA required a solution to effectively treat the documents for use by staff while maintaining the integrity of the original documents for retention purposes.

The condition of the BioMat documents was comparable to "Heavy Mold" examples on page 9 of Attachment D in the NARA bid packet. Trained technicians utilized preservation tools (e.g. bamboo brushes, variable speed HEPA vacuums, archival spatulas, etc.) to carefully separate and clean adhered and brittle medical records, inclusive of media (e.g. photographs, etc.). The techniques used achieved acceptance levels without sterilization (e.g. gamma irradiation) comparable to the NARA task order.

The BioMat USA project was completed on time and with no interruption.

Relevant Past Performance Case #5

Project Title: AmRestore – Prince Georges County

Description of the Project: Pack out, shipping, drying, cleaning, gamma irradiating

and odor neutralization of roughly 12,700 cubic feet of critical documents

Contract Number: AMR01-9/11 Contract Amount: \$3,017,642

COTR's Name, Address, and Phone Number:

Will Lamb, AmRestore, 796 Cromwell Park Drive, Suite K, Glen Burnie MD 21061

Jack Sloan, Prince Georges County, 14741 Governor Oden Bowie Drive, Upper Marlboro, MD 20772

Current Status, e.g., completed and/or if in progress, start and estimated completion dates: 10/2011 - 9/2012

Rapid Refile, a Polygon US Company, performed a full document recovery project for Prince Georges County as a subcontractor through AmRestore after Hurricane Irene in 2011. The duration of the project was 11 months. The project was a volume of over 12, 700 cubic feet of documents. This project was done in phases according to the customer's needs, as well as by specific departments. Services performed for this project included: shipping, freezer stabilization, vacuum freeze gamma irradiation, desiccant drying, intensive cleaning, neutralization, re-boxing, labeling and return delivery. This project presented a few dynamics that directed us to structure the timeline of completion as we did. There was a large degree of extensive mold on the documents that required long extensive cleaning to accomplish a good result. The documents also presented a strong odor due to the proteins in the Chesapeake waters that had damaged the documents. Along with these services, mold testing was required on a percentage of the overall project set by the customer. We accomplished a 100% cleared result with our process. Not one document failed the test. This required testing did factor into the timeline calculation because of pre and post testing periods. We also performed short-term storage of the completed documents until the customer had a facility prepared for return delivery.

DISASTER RESPONSE

Document Restoration and Emergency Response Services



ROB SCHMIDT DOCUMENT DIVISION POLYGON NORTH AMERICA 484-553-0188 ROB.SCHMIDT@POLYGONGROUP.COM

CORPORATE HEADQUARTERS
15 SHARPNER'S POND ROAD, BLDG F
NORTH ANDOVER, MA 01845
1-800-422-6379
www.polygongroup.us



Document Restoration Capabilities

Polygon offers the most advanced techniques for document recovery and complete media restoration services.

- Emergency services
- Complete project management
- Application of disinfectants
- Smoke and soot (carbon) removal
- Deodorization
- Media and document restoration

- Dehumidification and drying
- Vacuum freeze drying
- On-site drying
- Microbial disinfecting
- Copy and storage
- Consulting

Document Drying & Restoration

Damaged paper, book bindings, x-rays and films quickly deteriorate, so a timely and appropriate recovery protocol is necessary to halt the progression of damage and protect what are often highly valuable and irreplaceable documents. Polygon has the expertise to evaluate and cost-effectively recover your potential information loss. Each year Polygon saves over 1 million documents.

Polygon currently provides restoration services for the FBI, Pentagon, Universities, Museums and Corporate Archives. Polygon is a proven trusted partner when a job needs to be done right, the first time.

Polygon's document recovery center personnel undergo extensive training in all aspects of information recovery and are up to date on the most advanced techniques available, such as: freezing drying, blast freezing, microbial disinfecting, deodorization and soot (carbon) removal.

Mold will grow quickly on water-soaked materials, or on documents stored in high humidity areas. Polygon desiccant drying techniques eliminate the moisture that fungi require for growth. By quickly stabilizing water-damaged areas with dehumidification and controlling the moisture the potential for active mold growth is greatly reduced, protecting your unaffected information.

Polygon patented equipment can stabilize and control the ambient conditions in computer rooms and data processing centers. Vulnerable electronics can be preserved after fires from acidic corrosion. Cable runs can be dried quickly with cables in place. Storage media can be preserved. Moisture-laden, high humidity environments can be stabilized in time to save equipment.

Document Quality Control

Our standards are the highest in the industry. Polygon is the only company that provides clients with written standards and a guarantee that we will meet them. When you hire Polygon, you are assured that your project will be guaranteed upon completion.

We can perform our services onsite or at our Document Centers. We customize our services to the specific unique needs of each project.

Polygon developed a quality control system for the US government and applies that model to jobs where security is a concern. When a document is removed for repair, our Restoration in Progress Holding Card replaces the item. The card shows the name of the file removed, date removed, team member removing it, and date of expected return, and a cell phone to call if further information is needed. This provides minimal confusion for your team while we are working on the documents.



Trusted Partner

Morgan Stanley had extensive document damage to their original stocks and bonds. We worked onsite, in a glass conference room under security guards for the entire restoration.

Polygon has experience assisting in the cleaning of highly sensitive and confidential governmental files, as was the case with the Department of Veterans Administration. We utilized a security card system that kept track of every document and where it was at any given moment.

Polygon cleaned vital records for the New York State 6th Judicial District with security, speed and accuracy of inventory at the forefront of the project at all times.

Amherst College houses some of the most important documents of old New England. Polygon removed and dried all of these historical documents.

Polygon cleaned the highly sensitive and confidential records for the Cancer Care Center, with a high level of security and expedited service so the active medical files could be returned quickly and cancer patients' treatments would not be interrupted or compromised.

Polygon Restoration Services

In addition to Document Restoration, Polygon provides these turnkey solutions.

- Water Extraction/Pumping
- Drying Services
- Debris Removal
- Structure and Contents Cleaning
- Reconstruction Services
- Temporary Power

- Document Restoration
- Fire Damage Clean UP
- Smoke and Odor Abatement
- Mold Remediation
- Air Purification
- Temporary Heat or Air Conditioning

Water Damage Recovery

It is crucial that a facility does not have extended water damage and the long-term microbiological growth that accompanies it. When you use Polygon after water damage, you limit your loss, recover faster and prevent long-term problems, such as, mold/microbiological growth or structural deterioration.

Our drying service is specialized. It requires an understanding of the physical properties of the materials to be dried. It requires special instrumentation to determine the extent of water damage and the moisture content of affected objects. It requires hi-tech dehumidifiers and other drying equipment. Our fleet of dehumidifiers, the largest inventory in the disaster restoration industry, gives us the equipment to handle any size loss. Most of all, it requires a substantial body of experience coupled with professional techniques. From a long-term perspective, drying thoroughly can be the most important part of a disaster recovery.

We use instrumentation to measure the moisture content of water-damaged materials. We show you how serious your damage is, documenting the location of moisture that must be removed. Our experts discuss specific methods of correcting water damage, and estimate recovery time. We give a quotation that clearly explains procedures and cost.



Mold Remediation

The Environmental Protection Agency and other experts on mold remediation have stated that, "Moisture control is the key to mold control." Only Polygon offers the vast knowledge gained from more than 30,000 recovery projects. Polygon will provide a turnkey approach to mold remediation. Our years of experience, technical expertise and professional approach to addressing your mold problem will make your recovery thorough and fast.

Polygon will first evaluate the extent of your damage. We will tell you what parts of your building already have been affected by mold growth and where you can avoid mold problems through comprehensive drying. When mold growth is visible, or otherwise found to be present, Polygon will help guide you through the remediation process.

When the evaluation is completed, Polygon will develop a comprehensive project plan consistent with industry standards and applicable regulations. Polygon trained technicians will be equipped to work safely and will follow nationally accepted guidelines for remediation. If necessary, containment procedures call for the removal of affected materials, it will be implemented and steps taken to prevent migration of mold spores to unaffected areas. A system involving airflow (negative pressure) and HEPA filtration will be engineered to properly dry and decontaminate the affected area.

Once drying and remediation are completed, Polygon will document that the area has been thoroughly dried and remediated. Finally, Polygon will work with third-party health professionals using post-remediation testing, to establish that the project has been completed successfully.

Polygon works to the highest standards during mold remediation. We are clearly established as the leader in water damage recovery and we work continuously with industry experts to develop the most advanced techniques for the remediation of mold. Our people are both trained internally and certified through outside organizations in the remediation process. We have unsurpassed engineering skills, which are used to develop methods of containment and pressurization for the purpose of limiting contamination to affected areas. Our fleet of advanced drying, filtering and decontaminating equipment gives us the tools to execute the protocols required under the most critical circumstances.

Fire & Smoke Damage Recovery

When you call Polygon after fire damage, you get a coordinated effort to control your loss and minimize your recovery costs. The professionals at Polygon will quickly assess your fire damage problem, integrate necessary services and quickly bring the required staff and equipment to the job site. With Polygon on the job, there is no time wasted, no confusion resulting from multiple companies unwilling or unprepared to cooperate. Polygon does it all, from initial water removal to documenting the thoroughness of the recovery.

Polygon is ready around-the-clock for your call. We can provide water extraction immediately; even while we are helping you assess the extent of your damage. Polygon has staff that can begin debris removal as soon as the building is safe.

Once the job is stabilized, Polygon can continue with the restoration work. Initial efforts will be made to clean smoke residue from surfaces, as well as deodorizing rooms. Sanitizing and disinfecting will prevent the growth of mold and other pathogens. Sanitizing will be enhanced by deeply drying building cavities to prevent future mold growth. If needed, Polygon will conduct controlled demolition to remove un-restorable materials and make way for reconstruction activities.

Rob Schmidt
Document Division
484-553-0188
Rob.schmidt@polygongroup.com